
 

 

 
 
 
 

Economic 
Development and Skills 
Policy Committee 
 
Wednesday 21 February 2024 at 2.00 
pm 
 
To be held in the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Martin Smith  
Councillor Minesh Parekh  
Councillor Henry Nottage  
Councillor Terry Fox  
Councillor Kurtis Crossland  
Councillor Brian Holmshaw  
Councillor Abdul Khayum  
Councillor Barbara Masters  
Councillor Laura Moynahan  
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 
 
The Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee discusses and takes 
decisions on: 
 

• Economic Development, Skills and Culture 
• Business growth and economic strategy 
• Arts development and projects 
• Theatres. Museums, galleries etc 
• City and community events 
• Employment policy and programmes 
• Adult education and Skills 
• Enterprise, employment and digital skills 
• Adult skills policy and programmes 

 
Meetings are chaired by Councillor Martin Smith.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk . You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda. 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Policy 
Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair. 
Please see the Council’s webpage or contact Democratic Services for further 
information regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s 
protocol on audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings.  
 
Policy Committee meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the 
Committee may have to discuss an item in private. If this happens, you will be asked 
to leave. Any private items are normally left until last on the agenda.  
 
Meetings of the Policy Committee have to be held as physical meetings. If you would 
like to attend the meeting, please report to an Attendant in the Foyer at the Town 
Hall where you will be directed to the meeting room.  However, it would be 
appreciated if you could register to attend, in advance of the meeting, by 
emailing committee@sheffield.gov.uk, as this will assist with the management of 
attendance at the meeting. The meeting rooms in the Town Hall have a limited 
capacity. We are unable to guarantee entrance to the meeting room for observers, 
as priority will be given to registered speakers and those that have registered to 
attend.  
 
Alternatively, you can observe the meeting remotely by clicking on the ‘view the 
webcast’ link provided on the meeting page of the website. 
 
If you wish to attend a meeting and ask a question or present a petition, you must 
submit the question/petition in writing by 9.00 a.m. at least 2 clear working days in 
advance of the date of the meeting, by email to the following address: 
committee@sheffield.gov.uk.  
 

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=646
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

In order to ensure safe access and to protect all attendees, you will be 
recommended to wear a face covering (unless you have an exemption) at all times 
within the venue. Please do not attend the meeting if you have COVID-19 symptoms. 
It is also recommended that you undertake a Covid-19 Rapid Lateral Flow Test 
within two days of the meeting.   
 
If you require any further information please email committee@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 

FACILITIES 
 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. Access for people 
with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the side to the main 
Town Hall entrance. 
 

mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SKILLS POLICY COMMITTEE AGENDA 

21 FEBRUARY 2024 
 

Order of Business 
 
Welcome and Housekeeping 
 
The Chair to welcome attendees to the meeting and outline basic housekeeping and 
fire safety arrangements. 
  
1.   Apologies for Absence  
  
2.   Exclusion of Press and Public  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to 

exclude the press and public 
 

 

 
3.   Declarations of Interest (Pages 7 - 10) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting 
 

 

 
4.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 11 - 16) 
 To approve the minutes of the last meeting of the 

Committee held on 20th December, 2023. 
 

 

 
5.   Public Questions and Petitions  
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 

public. 
 
(NOTE: There is a time limit of up to 30 minutes for the 
above item of business. In accordance with the 
arrangements published on the Council’s website, 
questions/petitions at the meeting are required to be 
submitted in writing, to committee@sheffield.gov.uk, by 9.00 
a.m. on 19th February, 2024). 
 

 

 
6.   Members' Questions  
 To receive any questions from Members of the committee 

on issues which are not already the subject of an item of 
business on the Committee agenda – Council Procedure 
Rule 16.8. 
 
(NOTE: a period of up to 10 minutes shall be allocated for Members’ 
supplementary questions - one supplemental question on each question 
may be asked by the Member who had submitted the original question). 
 
 

 

 
7.   Work Programme (Pages 17 - 30) 
 Report of the Director of Policy and Democratic 

Engagement 
 

 



 

 

Formal Decisions 
  
8.   Culture Strategy (Pages 31 - 108) 
  

Report of the Executive Director City Futures 
 

 

 
9.   Economic Development & Skills Capital Strategy (Pages 109 - 

116) 
 Report of the Executive Director City Futures 

 
 

 
10.   Climate Statement (Pages 117 - 

142) 
 Report of the Executive Director City Futures 

 
 

 
Briefings and Updates 
  
11.   Lifelong Learning and Skills quality update report (Pages 143 - 

166) 
 Report of the Executive Director City Futures 

 
 

 
 NOTE: The next meeting of Economic Development and 

Skills Policy Committee will be held on Wednesday 20 
March 2024 at 2.00 pm 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its Policy Committees, or of any 
committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-committee of the authority, 
and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) relating to any business that 
will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 
• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 

which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 

a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 2 

 
• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 

have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 
 
• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 

partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 
• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 

securities of a body where -  
 

(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b)  either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 8



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from David Hollis, General Counsel by emailing 
david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 9

mailto:david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee 
 

Meeting held 20 December 2023 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Martin Smith (Chair), Minesh Parekh (Deputy Chair), 

Henry Nottage (Group Spokesperson), Kurtis Crossland, 
Brian Holmshaw, Abdul Khayum, Barbara Masters and Laura Moynahan 
 

 
  
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Terry Fox. 
  
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 
and public. 
 

  
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 Councillor Nottage declared an interest in item 11 due to him being a business 
owner that had received a carbon audit under a Shared Prosperity Fund scheme. 

  
4.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 The minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 8th November, 2023 were 
approved as a correct record. 

  
5.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

5.1 No petitions or public questions were received. 
  
6.   
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

6.1 A schedule of questions to the Chair, submitted in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 16, and which contained written answers, was circulated.  
Supplementary questions, under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.4, 
were asked and were answered by the Chair. 

  
7.   
 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 

7.1 The Principal Democratic Services Officer presented the Work Programme. 
 

7.2 A member asked for an update on the LGBTQI+ item that had no timescale on the 
work programme. The Director of Economy, Skills and Culture assured the 
committee that work was underway on this project and a consultation was planned 
for the new year. An informal briefing for members would be arranged for the new 
year. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Meeting of the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee 20.12.2023 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
7.3 Members suggested that it may be a good idea to consult the Local Area 

Committees (LACs) on the Culture Strategy and officers advised that some 
engagement work had already started with stakeholders within the sectors and the 
LACs could also be incorporated. 
 

7.4 There was a suggestion that early engagement be carried out with businesses on 
workplace parking schemes and their potential impact and this be added to the 
work programme. 
 

7.5 A member asked about the Employment and Skills Strategy and whether the 
planned task and finish group was underway. The Director of Economy, Skills and 
Culture explained that a procurement exercise had not been successful, this would 
be reconsidered in the new year and therefore there was a delay in bringing this to 
fruition.  
 

7.6 It was noted that the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee had recently had 
excellent presentations from care leavers about their experiences and it was 
suggested that the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee would 
benefit from a similar presentation from someone that had been impacted by the 
employment and skills service. 
  

7.7 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY that, having considered if they required any further 
additions or adjustments:- 
  
1. the Committee’s work programme, as set out in Appendix 1 be agreed, 
including any additions and amendments identified in Part 1  
2. consideration be given to the further additions or adjustments to the work 
programme presented at Part 2 of Appendix 1;  
3. Members give consideration to any further issues to be explored by officers 
for inclusion in Part 2 of Appendix 1 of the next work programme report, for 
potential addition to the work programme.  

  
  
  
8.   
 

2023/24 Q2 BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 
 

8.1 This report brings the Committee up to date with the Council’s outturn position for 
Quarter 2 2023/24 General Fund revenue position 

  
8.2 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Economic Development and Skills Policy 

Committee:- 
 
Notes the updated information and management actions on the 2023/24 Revenue 
Budget Outturn as described in this report 

  
8.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
8.3.1 To record formally changes to the Revenue Budget 

Page 12



Meeting of the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee 20.12.2023 

Page 3 of 6 
 

  
8.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
8.4.1 The Council is required to both set a balance budget and to ensure that in-year 

income and expenditure are balanced. No other alternatives were considered. 
  
  
9.   
 

GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL AND DOCFEST 
2024-2026 
 

9.1.1 The committee considered a report seeking approval to grant International 
Documentary Festival Sheffield (DocFest) with a total of £100,000 per year to be 
expended over a 3 year term to support the delivery of the 2024, 2025 and 2026 
DocFest events in Sheffield, the detail of which will be agreed and signed by way 
of a grant agreement.  

9.1.2 Members asked questions about sustainable travel options for delegates attending 
the festival and Annabel Grundy, Managing Director of DocFest explained that 
once in Sheffield, the venues were located such that delegates were able to walk 
between them. 
 

9.1.3 Members noted that this was a three year funding agreement and asked how they 
would be updated on the progress of the event achieving sustainability. It was 
noted that the three year agreement tied in with other funding streams and the 
ability to leverage against these. Three years would help the event to be ambitious 
and diversify its sources of funding and they were very grateful for the 
commitment.  An extensive annual report was available and there were regular 
touchpoints to note progress. It was agreed that a report would be brought to the 
committee after the next DocFest had taken place. 
 

9.1.4 It was highlighted that a key focus for the future was the community impact of the 
event, to make sure that local people felt involved and to link up with other 
Yorkshire based events that had community outreach functions. Monthly 
screenings were available at the Showcase Cinema and local growth was another 
important objective. 
 

9.1.5 It was acknowledged that sustainable funding for SCC’s events programme was 
needed and officers were working on this. 

  
9.2 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Economic Development and Skills Policy 

Committee:- 
 
a) Awards a 3-year grant to DocFest for the sum of £100K a year for 3 years to 
support the delivery of DocFest in Sheffield in 2024, 2025 and 2026; and,  
b) Notes that the funding will be drawn from the Strategic Major Events Fund 
c) Requests an annual report be submitted to the committee following DocFest 
2024 

  
9.3 Reasons for Decision 

Page 13



Meeting of the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee 20.12.2023 

Page 4 of 6 
 

  
9.3.1 Providing a three-year grant agreement ensures stability and certainty for Sheffield 

DocFest and the Council whilst DocFest continue to grow. It ensures that the new 
senior team at DocFest are in a position to plan ahead and develop the Festival. 
The grant supports DocFest in being able to lever more external funding from 
national bodies to ensure its long-term viability. It also ensures Sheffield continues 
to benefit from the economic impact the Festival delivers to our various 
organisations and businesses (including vulnerable sectors such as hospitality). 
The timing of DocFest 2024 in June provides a fantastic platform to showcase the 
regeneration and developments in the city centre to this diverse and ‘out of town’ 
audience. The Council will be able to review its position in 2026. 

  
9.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
9.4.1 Providing no grant for Sheffield DocFest would likely result in the permanent 

withdrawal of DocFest from Sheffield or a significant reduction in the quality and 
breadth of the Festival, risking its international reputation, community outreach 
and/or future relocation to an alternative city. This would result in the approximate 
£2,000,000 delegate spend per year being lost, and would also have the effect of 
reducing the city’s profile and reputation within the creative community inside and 
outside of Sheffield. 

  
  
10.   
 

SYMCA EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS STRATEGY BRIEFING 
 

10.1.1 Members received a presentation from the Director of Skills, South Yorkshire 
Mayoral Combined Authority (SYMCA) on their Employment and Skills Strategy, 
due to be agreed in March 2024, detailing the three key mission areas. The 
importance of the interface between the MCA strategy and the local strategy 
was emphasised and members highlighted that the issue of inequality needed to 
feature more strongly in the strategy.   

10.1.2 A discussion took place around the key challenges that the strategy faced and 
the Director identified the need for all stakeholders to work together to ensure 
that residents could access the support they needed. Members also asked 
questions on the following areas; 

• The involvement of trade unions to ensure the needs of employees as 
well as employers were met and it was noted that a webinar would take 
place in January to reach out to as many people as possible. 

• The impact of the closure of the Peaks Campus of Sheffield College on 
16 to 24 year olds and it was acknowledged that there were some cold 
spots and it was important to get the careers provision right for all young 
people. 

• The skills gap in green technologies and ensuring that we have the skills 
we need to achieve net zero targets 

10.1.3 It was agreed that inequality was not addressed strongly enough within the 
strategy and although engagement had been carried out with the third sector this 
needed to be evidenced further. It was also acknowledged that not everyone can 
access conventional training programmes and therefore a range of different 
models was required.  

Page 14



Meeting of the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee 20.12.2023 

Page 5 of 6 
 

10.1.4 It was highlighted that the interface between the MCA’s strategy and the local 
strategies were important to deliver some of the local work and it was confirmed 
that the MCA would be commissioning local learning, so grant funding would be 
available to local authorities.  

10.2 The committee agreed to note the update, thanked the Director of Skills for their 
time and requested a further update be brought back to the committee next year. 

   
  
11.   
 

UKSPF UPDATE 
 

11.1.1 The committee considered a report providing a progress update in respect to the 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF) programme in Sheffield. In doing so the report 
also highlights concerns about the lack of certainty in relation to what might 
replace SPF from April 2025.   

11.1.2 Members asked why a climate impact assessment had not been completed for this 
report and it was explained that all the projects covered by the report had been to 
the committee already with their assessments completed and therefore it was not 
necessary on this occasion. 
 

11.1.3 Members asked for reassurance that there were sufficient resources available to 
complete the projects given that a number of them stated that there had been 
‘zero spend to date’. It was confirmed that there would be no shortfalls. 
 

11.1.4 A question was asked about how individual organisations could access SPF 
funding and it was advised that they contact the culture team who would be able to 
assist in the writing of bids. 
 

11.1.5 Members requested an update on High Street Business Information Officers and it 
was agreed this was a good suggestion as they work closely with both local 
businesses and LACs. 
 

11.2 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Economic Development and Skills Policy 
Committee:- 
 

1. Notes the progress of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund programme in 
Sheffield and  

2. Shares the concerns raised in respect to future funding for economic 
development activity. 

  
11.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
11.3.1 This report provides Committee with a full update of the UKSPF programme to 

date and confirms that funding is available to complete all project activity through 
to March 2025. 

  
11.3.2 The report provides an opportunity to highlight concerns about the ability to deliver 

similar activity in the future given no current indication of what will replace UKSPF 
in 25/26. 

Page 15



Meeting of the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee 20.12.2023 

Page 6 of 6 
 

  
11.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
11.4.1 The provision of an update report does not require an options assessment. 
  
  
12.   
 

SOCIAL VALUE 
 

12.1.1 The Sheffield Employability Programme Manager presented an overview of the 
Social Value Annual Report to the committee. A list of achievements was 
included in addition to specific case studies and new sectors that had been 
involved this year such as Care and Fleet Services.   

12.1.2 Members noted that many of the organisations involved were larger 
organisations and it was explained that lots of work took place with the voluntary 
sector and charity partners and that significant improvements had been made in 
this area. The Diverse Business Board had decided to look into this and to help 
SMEs bid for contracts. 
 

12.1.3 Members asked whether contractors acknowledged the benefits of Social Value 
or whether it was viewed as a cost and it was noted that there were a list of 
benefits that could be demonstrated, such as a more diverse workforce and it 
was suggested that these could potentially be developed into recommendations 
to the other policy committees. 

    
12.2 The Director of Economy, Skills and Culture agreed to further articulate the 

economic impacts and benefits to employers using case studies. The committee 
resolved to note the report .  

    
  

Page 16



 

 

 

 

 

Report of: James Henderson, Director of Policy and Democratic Engagement 
______________________________________________________________ 

 

Subject:  Committee Work Programme – Economic Development and Skills 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Author of Report: Amanda Clayton, Principal Democratic Services Officer 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Summary:  

The Committee’s Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for the Committee’s 
consideration and discussion. This aims to show all known, substantive agenda items 
for forthcoming meetings of the Committee, to enable this committee, other 
committees, officers, partners and the public to plan their work with and for the 
Committee. 
 
Any changes since the Committee’s last meeting, including any new items, have been 
made in consultation with the Chair, and the document is always considered at the 
regular pre-meetings to which all Group Spokespersons are invited. 
 
The following potential sources of new items are included in this report, where 
applicable: 

• Questions and petitions from the public, including those referred from Council  
• References from Council or other committees (statements formally sent for this 

committee’s attention) 
• A list of issues, each with a short summary, which have been identified by the 

Committee or officers as potential items but which have not yet been scheduled 
(See Appendix 1) 

 
The Work Programme will remain a live document and will be brought to each 
Committee meeting. 
__________________________________________________________ 
 

Recommendations:  

Report to Economic Development and 
Skills Policy Committee

21st February 2024 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

 

1. That the Committee’s work programme, as set out in Appendix 1 be agreed, 
including any additions and amendments identified in Part 1; 

2. That consideration be given to the further additions or adjustments to the work 
programme presented at Part 2 of Appendix 1; 

3. That Members give consideration to any further issues to be explored by 
officers for inclusion in Part 2 of Appendix 1 of the next work programme report, 
for potential addition to the work programme; and 

 

Background Papers:  None 

Category of Report: Open   

 

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

1.0 Prioritisation 

1.1 For practical reasons this committee has a limited amount of time each year in 
which to conduct its formal business. The Committee will need to prioritise firmly in 
order that formal meetings are used primarily for business requiring formal decisions, 
or which for other reasons it is felt must be conducted in a formal setting. 
 
1.2 In order to ensure that prioritisation is effectively done, on the basis of evidence 
and informed advice, Members should usually avoid adding items to the work 
programme which do not already appear: 

• In the draft work programme in Appendix 1 due to the discretion of the chair; or 
• within the body of this report accompanied by a suitable amount of information. 

 

2.0 References from Council or other Committees 

2.1 Any references sent to this Committee by Council, including any public questions, 
petitions and motions, or other committees since the last meeting are listed here, with 
commentary and a proposed course of action, as appropriate: 

Issue  Committee Climate Statements 
Referred from  Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
Details  Strategy and Resources Policy Committee requests that each 

Policy Committee consider and, if not previously agreed, agree 
(with or without amendments) their respective statement to 
ensure that the proposed actions contained in such statement 
are reflected in their Work Programme. 

Commentary/ Action 
Proposed  

 

 

3.0 Member engagement, learning and policy development outside of 
Committee  
  

Page 18



 

 

3.1 Subject to the capacity and availability of councillors and officers, there are a 
range of ways in which Members can explore subjects, monitor information and 
develop their ideas about forthcoming decisions outside of formal meetings. Appendix 
2 is an example ‘menu’ of some of the ways this could be done. It is entirely 
appropriate that member development, exploration and policy development should in 
many cases take place in a private setting, to allow members to learn and formulate a 
position in a neutral space before bringing the issue into the public domain at a formal 
meeting.   
  
3.2 Training & Skills Development - Induction programme for this committee.  
 
Title Description & Format Date 

   

   

Page 19



 

 

Appendix 1 – Work Programme  

Part 1: Proposed additions and amendments to the work programme since the last meeting: 

Item Proposed Date Note 
NEW - Tramlines 20th March 24  
NEW: Economic Recovery Fund – Round 2 
Update 

20th March 24  

NEW – Economic Development & Skills Capital 
Strategy 

21st February 24  

NEW – Economic Development & Skills Climate 
Statement 

21st February 24  

NEW – Lifelong Learning & Skills Quality Update 21st February 24  
AMENDMENTS   
MOVED – Employment & Skills Strategy Update 20th March 2024 Moved from February 2024 
REMOVED – Culture Strategy June 2024 Moved from February 2024. Formal report expected June 2024. 

 
Part 2: List of other potential items not yet included in the work programme 
Issues that have recently been identified by the Committee, its Chair or officers as potential items but have not yet been added to the proposed work 
programme. If a Councillor raises an idea in a meeting and the committee agrees under recommendation 3 that this should be explored, it will appear either in 
the work programme or in this section of the report at the committee’s next meeting, at the discretion of the Chair. 

Topic  

Description  

Lead Officer/s  

Item suggested by  

Type of item  

Prior member engagement/ 
development required  (with reference 
to options in Appendix 2) 

 

P
age 20



 

 

Public Participation/ Engagement 
approach(with reference to toolkit in 
Appendix 3) 

 

Lead Officer Commentary/Proposed 
Action(s) 

 

 

Part 3: Agenda Items for Forthcoming Meetings 

Meeting 5 21st February 2024 Time 2pm     

Topic Description Lead Officer/s Type of item 
• Decision 
• Referral to decision-

maker 
• Pre-decision (policy 

development) 
• Post-decision 

(service 
performance/ 
monitoring) 

(re: decisions)  
Prior member 
engagement/ 
development 
required   
(with reference to 
options in Appendix 
1) 

(re: decisions) 
Public 
Participation/ 
Engagement 
approach 
(with reference to 
toolkit in Appendix 
2)  

Final decision-
maker (& date) 
• This Cttee 
• Another 

Cttee (eg 
S&R) 

• Full Council 
• Officer 

NEW – 
Economic 
Development & 
Skills Capital 
Strategy 

This report sets out the 
key priority areas for 
capital investment for the 
Economic Development & 
Skills Policy Committee 
and provides an overview 
of potential projects and 
priorities for the years 
2024 to 2029, together 
with an overview of 
anticipated developments 
and challenges up to 2052 

Phil 
Moorcroft 

Decision  Any required 
consultation will be 
carried out prior to 
formal capital 
approval of the 
schemes being 
brought forward to 
Finance 
Committee. 

Council 

P
age 21



 

 

NEW – 
Economic 
Development & 
Skills Climate 
Statement 

The Council has 
committed to address the 
climate emergency, adapt 
our city and council for a 
changing climate, and set 
an ambitious target to 
become a net zero council 
and city by 2030. 
 

Diana Buckley Performance/Monitoring Briefing to 
committee chair at 
S&R strategic 
briefing 8/11/2023 
to shape draft 
statements. 
Written briefing 
and draft for review 
and comments 
provided 20/11/23 
to Economic 
Development and 
Skills committee 
chair, deputy chair 
and group 
spokespeople. Item 
taken to S&R 
Committee 
Meeting 
13/12/2023, 
attended by the 
Economic 
Development and 
Skills  Committee 
chair and deputy 
chair and leading to 
decision: welcomes 
the Committee 
Climate 
Statements, as 
detailed in the 
report now 
submitted, and 
notes that these 
are work in 

N/A This committee 

P
age 22



 

 

progress and will 
evolve over time; 
and requests that 
each Policy 
Committee 
consider and, if not 
previously agreed, 
agree (with or 
without 
amendments) their 
respective 
statement to 
ensure that the 
proposed actions 
contained in such 
statement are 
reflected in their 
work programme 
 

NEW – Lifelong 
Learning & Skills 
quality update 

To provide the committee 
with updated 
performance information 
about current provision 
within Lifelong Learning 
and Skills.   
As presented to the 
Lifelong Learning and 
Skills Advisory Board in 
January 2024 
 

Richard Smith Briefing item A version of this 
report has been 
shared with the 
Lifelong Learning 
and Skills Advisory 
Board, which is 
chaired by Cllr 
Martin Smith and 
attended by Cllr 
Minesh Parekh 
 

Our service 
engages with the 
public through 
teaching and 
learning of learners 
and apprentices.  
For potential 
learners we engage 
them in a variety of 
ways, through 
learner feedback, 
community 
engagement 
activities, surveys 
and through our 

This committee 

P
age 23



 

 

network of 
subcontracted 
community 
providers. 
 

Standing items 

 

• Public Questions/ 
Petitions 

• Work Programme 
• [any other 

committee-specific 
standing items eg 
finance or service 
monitoring] 

     

 

Meeting 6 20th March 2024 Time 2pm     

Topic Description Lead Officer/s Type of item 
• Decision 
• Referral to 

decision-maker 
• Pre-decision 

(policy 
development) 

• Post-decision 
(service 
performance/ 
monitoring) 

(re: decisions)  
Prior member 
engagement/ 
development 
required   
(with reference to 
options in Appendix 
1) 

(re: decisions) 
Public 
Participation/ 
Engagement 
approach 
(with reference to 
toolkit in Appendix 
2)  

Final decision-
maker (& date) 
• This Cttee 
• Another 

Cttee (eg 
S&R) 

• Full Council 
• Officer 

2023/24 Q3 
Budget 
Monitoring 

 Jane Wilby Decision 
 

  This committee 

NEW - Tramlines To seek approval from this 
Committee that the 
proposed agreement with 
Tramlines, including the 

Lisa Firth Monitoring Briefing to 
Committee 
Members in Dec 23. 

N/A Charity Trustee 
Sub-Committee 

P
age 24



 

 

associated fee structure, is 
in the best interests of the 
Hillsborough Park Charity.  

 

NEW: Economic 
Recovery Fund – 
Round 2 Update 

This report updates the 
Committee on progress to 
deliver the second round 
of the Economic Recovery 
Fund.   
 

Sarah Lowi 
Jones 

Decision EDS Policy 
Committee have 
been regularly 
briefed throughout 
the development 
and launch of ERF2 
and the main three 
members sit on the 
ERF Steering Group.  
LAC Chairs have 
been kept informed 
throughout as well. 
 
It is expected that 
on this specific 
decision the EDS 
Policy Committee 
will be briefed, 
alongside LAC 
Chairs and political 
group briefings will 
be offered. 
 

Not relevant to this 
decision, but there 
is a stakeholder 
plan that aims to 
inform and engage 
the public in ERF 
progress and 
delivery. 

This committee 

Employment & 
Skills Strategy 
Update 

On Wednesday 15 March 
2023, the Economic 
Development and Skills 
Policy Committee tasked 
the Sheffield Employment 
& Skills Advisory Board 
(SESAB) with developing a 
renewed Employment & 

Laura Hayfield Update A Member Task & 
Finish group has 
supported the 
development of the 
strategy providing 
updates to the 
wider Committee 

The commissioned 
consultant has 
engaged with a 
variety of 
stakeholders in 
developing the 
draft strategy, 
including SESAB 

This committee 

P
age 25



 

 

Skills Strategy for 
Sheffield. 
  

partners and wider 
stakeholders 
(including 
providers, delivery 
staff and 
residents). The 
consultant has also 
drawn upon desk-
based research 
undertaken by 
South Yorkshire 
Mayoral Combined 
Authority in the 
course of 
developing a 
regional skills 
strategy, insight 
from the Local 
Skills Improvement 
Plan and wider 
policy steer. 
  

Standing items 

 

• Public Questions/ 
Petitions 

• Work Programme 
• [any other committee-

specific standing items 
eg finance or service 
monitoring] 

     

 

Items which the committee have agreed to add to an agenda, but for which no date is yet set. 

P
age 26



 

 

 

Topic Description Lead 
Officer/s 

Type of item 
• Decision 
• Referral to 

decision-maker 
• Pre-decision 

(policy 
development) 

• Post-decision 
(service 
performance/ 
monitoring) 

(re: decisions)  
Prior member 
engagement/ 
development required   
(with reference to 
options in Appendix 1) 

(re: decisions) 
Public 
Participation/ 
Engagement 
approach 
(with reference to 
toolkit in Appendix 
2)  

Final decision-
maker (& date) 
• This Cttee 
• Another 

Cttee (eg 
S&R) 

• Full Council 
• Officer 

LGBTQIA+ 
Quarter 

In discussion with 
Committee Members a 
session to be planned on 
the approach to Night Time 
Economy, potentially joint 
with TRC Committee 
 

Diana 
Buckley/ 
Will 
Stewart 

   TBC 

P
age 27



 

 

Appendix 2 – Menu of options for member engagement, learning and development 
prior to formal Committee consideration 

Members should give early consideration to the degree of pre-work needed before an 
item appears on a formal agenda. 

All agenda items will anyway be supported by the following: 

• Discussion well in advance as part of the work programme item at Pre-agenda 
meetings. These take place in advance of each formal meeting, before the agenda 
is published and they consider the full work programme, not just the immediate 
forthcoming meeting. They include the Chair, Vice Chair and all Group 
Spokespersons from the committee, with officers 

• Discussion and, where required, briefing by officers at pre-committee meetings in 
advance of each formal meeting, after the agenda is published. These include the 
Chair, Vice Chair and all Group Spokespersons from the committee, with officers. 

• Work Programming items on each formal agenda, as part of an annual and 
ongoing work programming exercise 

• Full officer report on a public agenda, with time for a public discussion in 
committee 

• Officer meetings with Chair & VC as representatives of the committee, to consider 
addition to the draft work programme, and later to inform the overall development 
of the issue and report, for the committee’s consideration. 

The following are examples of some of the optional ways in which the committee may 
wish to ensure that they are sufficiently engaged and informed prior to taking a public 
decision on a matter. In all cases the presumption is that these will take place in private, 
however some meetings could happen in public or eg be reported to the public 
committee at a later date. 

These options are presented in approximately ascending order of the amount of 
resources needed to deliver them. Members must prioritise carefully, in consultation with 
officers, which items require what degree of involvement and information in advance of 
committee meetings, in order that this can be delivered within the officer capacity 
available. 

The majority of items cannot be subject to the more involved options on this list, for 
reasons of officer capacity. 

• Written briefing for the committee or all members (email) 
• All-member newsletter (email) 
• Requests for information from specific outside bodies etc. 
• All-committee briefings (private or, in exceptional cases, in-committee) 
• All-member briefing (virtual meeting) 
• Facilitated policy development workshop (potential to invite external experts / 

public, see appendix 2) 
• Site visits (including to services of the council) 
• Task and Finish group (one at a time, one per cttee) 

Furthermore, a range of public participation and engagement options are available to 
inform Councillors, see appendix 3. 

 
Page 28



 

 

Appendix 3 – Public engagement and participation toolkit 

Public Engagement Toolkit 

On 23 March 2022 Full Council agreed the following: 

A toolkit to be developed for each committee to use when considering its ‘menu of 
options’ for ensuring the voice of the public has been central to their policy development 
work. Building on the developing advice from communities and Involve, committees 
should make sure they have a clear purpose for engagement; actively support diverse 
communities to engage; match methods to the audience and use a range of methods; 
build on what’s worked and existing intelligence (SCC and elsewhere); and be very clear 
to participants on the impact that engagement will have. 

The list below builds on the experiences of Scrutiny Committees and latterly the 
Transitional Committees and will continue to develop. The toolkit includes (but is not  
limited to): 

a. Public calls for evidence 
b. Issue-focused workshops with attendees from multiple backgrounds 

(sometimes known as ‘hackathons’) led by committees 
c. Creative use of online engagement channels 
d. Working with VCF networks (eg including the Sheffield Equality 

Partnership) to seek views of communities 
e. Co-design events on specific challenges or to support policy development 
f. Citizens assembly style activities 
g. Stakeholder reference groups (standing or one-off) 
h. Committee / small group visits to services 
i. Formal and informal discussion groups 
j. Facilitated communities of interest around each committee (eg a mailing list 

of self-identified stakeholders and interested parties with regular 
information about forthcoming decisions and requests for contributions or 
volunteers for temporary co-option) 

k. Facility for medium-term or issue-by-issue co-option from outside the 
Council onto Committees or Task and Finish Groups. Co-optees of this sort 
at Policy Committees would be non-voting. 

This public engagement toolkit is intended to be a quick ‘how-to’ guide for Members and 
officers to use when undertaking participatory activity through committees. 

It will provide an overview of the options available, including the above list, and cover: 

• How to focus on purpose and who we are trying to reach 
• When to use and when not to use different methods 
• How to plan well and be clear to citizens what impact their voice will have 
• How to manage costs, timescales, scale. 

There is an expectation that Members and Officers will be giving strong 
consideration to the public participation and engagement options for each item on 
a committee’s work programme, with reference to the above list a-k. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



 

Policy Committee Report                                                        May 2023 

1  

 
 

Report to Policy Committee 
 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:  Rebecca 
Maddox and Kate Brindley  
 
Tel:  07764 290497 

 
Report of: 
 

 
Kate Martin 

Report to: 
 

Economic Development and Skills Committee 

Date of Decision: 
 

21.02.24 

Subject: City Culture Strategy; wider culture progress 
update; support for Harmony Works Trust (CIO) 
 

 
Type of Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) undertaken Initial / Full   
 
EIA 1217 

 
 
 

Has appropriate consultation/engagement taken place? Yes / No   
 
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes  No /  
n/a 
 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No /  
 
 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 
In September 2022 the Economic Development and Skills Committee endorsed a 
new Strategic Approach to Culture that included the development of a new Cultural 
Strategy and the council being committed to more actively seeking funds for 
activities in culture. The Committee asked to be updated regularly on progress; 
updates were provided in February 2023 and September 2023, this report provides 
further update.  
 
This report also seeks the Committee’s approval to make the grant award of 
£118,250 revenue funding from Project Feasibility Fund to Harmony Works Trust 
Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO), for the development and completion of 
a detailed business case for a regional music education hub at Castlegate. 
 

2  
Recommendations: 
 
It is recommended:  
 
1) That the Economic Development and Skills Committee notes: 

• the progress so far in developing a new Culture Strategy for Sheffield 
• details of the Shared Prosperity Fund Year 3 Cultural Showcase activity; 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 of 13 

• detail of the Place Partnership bid which was recently submitted 
• progress with the Cultural Pipeline Fund 

 
2) That the Economic Development and Skills Committee approves the grant 
award of £118,250 revenue funding from Project Feasibility Fund to Harmony 
Works Trust (CIO) for the development and completion of a detailed business case 
for the creation of a regional music education hub at Castlegate. 
 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 

3 Cultural Audit Report – Appendix 1 
4 List of Task and Finish Group members – Appendix 2 

Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

Finance:  (Insert name of officer consulted) 
Liz Gough  
Legal:  (Insert name of officer consulted) 
Marcia McFarlane 

Equalities & Consultation:  (Insert name of officer 
consulted) 
Ed Sexton  

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed. 

Climate:  (Insert name of officer consulted) 
Kathryn Warrington  

 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

Kate Martin 

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Cllr Martin Smith 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2.  In addition, any additional 
forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1.  

 Lead Officer Name: 
Rebecca Maddox 
Kate Brindley 

Job Title:  
Head of Business Development (Culture) 
Cultural Development Consultant 

 Date:  12/02/24 

  
  
  
 
 
 

 

Page 32



 

Page 3 of 13 

  
1. 
 
 

PROPOSAL  

  
1.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.1.4 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1.2 
  

1.2.1  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In September 2022, the Economic Development and Skills 
Committee (EDS) were asked to approve proposals for developing a 
‘new Cultural Strategy for Sheffield’. EDS decided to adopt the 
proposed Sheffield Culture Collective Strategy as an interim 
cultural strategy for Sheffield; this is an initial strategic framework that 
will give direction and clarity while Sheffield City Council works with 
partners to develop the ‘new Cultural Strategy for Sheffield’.  
 
EDS also approved the proposal that by Autumn 2023, Sheffield City 
Council would commission consultants with skills and time to develop 
the ‘new Cultural Strategy for Sheffield’, and their work should be 
completed in May 2024.  This report includes the requested progress  
update. 
 
One aspect of the ‘new Culture Strategy for Sheffield’ involves 
Sheffield City Council taking a leadership role in applying for funds 
for culture and finding ways to direct external funding to cultural 
groups and activities.  Examples of these lead applications for 
funding include Shared Prosperity Fund-supported Creative 
Showcase; the recent submission to the Arts Council England Place 
Partnership Fund; and the Pipeline Fund, funded by Project 
Feasibility Fund. This report gives an update on these funding 
applications.  

 
Members are being asked to formally approve the proposal to  
allocate  £118,250 to the Harmony Works Trust (CIO) music 
education project,  by using funding which from Project Feasibility 
Funding that the council received from South Yorkshire Mayoral 
Combined Authority (SYMCA). 

 

Development of New Cultural Strategy for Sheffield  
 
This ‘new Cultural Strategy for Sheffield’ will be a guiding vision for 
everyone involved in culture or creativity in Sheffield. It will include 
the shared set of values that are agreed as important to the sector; 
recognition of where we are and where we want to be; and examples 
of the many things we should celebrate.  
 
The desired outcomes for this strategic development work are: 
 

• An ambitious vision, and a common narrative, outcomes and 
objectives.  

Page 33



 

Page 4 of 13 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

• Building a more productive and effective relationship with 
strategic funders (which will increase opportunities for successful 
funding bids and develop a pipeline of funding bids). 

• Analysis and synthesis of available data and existing reports, 
including a SWOT analysis  

• Clear Engagement plan and supportive capacity to execute it – 
understanding of what communities want and need from culture in 
Sheffield and the barriers to participation.  

 
Commissioning  
Through an open tender process, the council commissioned 
consultants, ‘Fourth Street Place Consultants’ and Sheffield-based 
‘Opus Independents’, to develop the new Cultural Strategy. The 
strategy’s development is being funded by Arts Council England, the 
University of Sheffield and Sheffield City Council. 
 
Both consultants bring a wealth of experience, knowledge and 
networks within the creative, cultural and community sectors and 
have a track record of working with Sheffield City Council. 
 
 
Governance  
An advisory Task & Finish Group has been meeting monthly since 
November 2023; its purpose is to guide the development of the 
strategy. As with all the engagement related to developing the 
strategy, the group represents a diagonal slice of the sector with 
equal weight given to a wide range of voices in the city, including 
those from diverse communities, arts organisations of different sizes, 
artists, freelancers, and the community sector. A full list of the 
membership is included at appendix 2.  
 
 
Engagement 
A central pillar of the strategy process is engagement with the cultural 
sector across the city. The intention is for those involved in the 
process to genuinely influence the direction and detail of the strategy. 
 
a) Phase 1 of the Engagement process (Dec 2023 -Jan 2024) 
 
Guided by the Task & Finish group, an initial creative sector survey 
has been undertaken to help steer the wider process. The purpose 
was to ask how best to engage most effectively to discuss the cultural 
strategy. This phase of the process has been completed, with 
responses from nearly 200 people.  
 
Initial findings from this engagement include: the need to ensure that 
the strategy is seen as sector wide, not just based on the views of 
SCC and existing networks like the Culture Consortium and Culture 

Page 34



 

Page 5 of 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           
         

      
 
 
 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2.6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Collective; engagement should involve a full range of engagement 
methods; and results must be shared transparently. 
 
There is some criticism of Sheffield City Council  in the feedback, 
mainly focussed on a historic lack of leadership and investment – this 
is no surprise and has featured in previous engagement with the 
sector. The Cultural Strategy development, alongside other recent 
developments being led by SCC, provides a platform to start to 
change those perceptions. It is important we work to gain credibility 
and the trust of the sector through a transparent and inclusive 
process, whilst also being realistic in managing expectation around 
resource.  
 
 
b) Phase 2 of the Engagement  (Feb-Mar 2024 ) 
This phase includes: 
 

i. use of the ‘Have your Say’ online platform to publish all key 
documents 
 

ii. 2 public workshops  

iii. 6 themed working group sessions, including on the networks 
that the sector needs, young people’s pathways and climate 
crisis   

 
iv. 20 one to one interviews 

v. Small group conversations on Creative Health; Private Sector; 
Universities; Music and the Nighttime Economy; Elected 
Members and Local Area Committees  

 
vi. Consultation sessions with young people, artists from South 

and East Asian, Black and LGBTQIA communities, and 
community anchor organisations.  

 
vii. Workshops run by Task and Finish group members 

 
viii. Follow up survey through digital engagement platform  

 
 
c) Phase 3 of the Engagement April- May 2024  

 
This will involve consolidation of results and providing feedback to 
the public. 
 
Cultural Audit and Research, to underpin the Cultural Strategy 
A stage 1 cultural audit and research paper has been written which 
is the foundational document for the strategy’s content and themes. 

Page 35



 

Page 6 of 13 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1.2.7 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This cultural audit and research paper summarises the foundational 
research into the current state of the cultural sector in Sheffield. It 
includes analysis of the following: 

- Policy priorities and funder strategy 
- City demographics and cultural participation levels 
- Economic data – GVA, businesses, jobs by sub-sector 
- Freelancer analysis 
- Initial consideration of supply chains, events, and cultural 

infrastructure 
- Next steps 
-  

This paper will be developed further using information from ongoing 
consultation and engagement. The Cultural Audit is included as an 
appendix. 
 
 
Next Steps 
 
Feb - Mar 2024 • Complete Engagement phase 2 including  

establishing a comms platform 
• Draft Vision and priorities 
• Impact and Economy 
• Research completion 
• Draft Strategy by 31.03.24 

Apr - May 2024 • Draft strategy discussed and finalised 
• Action plan developed 
• Final report by 31.05.24 
• EDS final report date to be confirmed  
• (June 2024) 

 
 
Updates on funding schemes and bid applications 
 
In June 2023, EDS approved the allocation of Shared Prosperity 
Fund (SPF) Years 2&3 funding to cultural and visitor economy 
activity. 
 
One element of this was to create a cultural events programme 
showcasing the city’s diversity and authenticity, to bring regional and 
national visitors, increase footfall and vibrancy, and benefit local 
creatives. 
 
This events programme has been developed alongside a bid for Arts 
Council Place Partnership funding, with a particular emphasis on 
benefitting young people from all Sheffield’s communities and 
supporting a wide range of partners. 
 
The 2024 cultural events programme (£192k) will include: 
 

Page 36



 

Page 7 of 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3.4 
 
 

Partner Activity 
Welcoming Cultures inc Roma 
community 

Cultural Caravan 
Pop up Museum 
Events 

Migration Matters Events 
Community engagement 

Sunrit Culture – South Asian dance 
and music 

Workshops and performances 

Stand and be Counted Theatre of 
Sanctuary 

Workshops and performances 

Sheffield Showcase – multi partner 
festival  

Up to 30 varied events over one 
weekend 

A Mind Apart Theatre – additional 
needs 

Workshops and performances 

Sensoria Festival – film and music International contributors 
 

 
The SPF Year 3 activity is acting as matched funding for a bid for 
£635k Place Partnerships funding from Arts Council England.  A 
decision on this bid is due in April/May 2024. 
 
The Place Partnerships bid includes: 
 
SCC Youth Voice and Influence 
Team 
Young People 

Fund administered by with and 
for young people for creative 
equipment/skills development 
contributing to a youth festival 
2025 

Arts Catalyst Partner in Youth Festival and 
Socially-engaged arts training 
(how to work with community 
groups) for young/early career 
artists  

CHOL Theatre Partner in Youth Festival, 
supporting young people to 
create programme and perform 

Montgomery Theatre Partner in Youth Festival 
supporting young people to 
create programme and perform 

Utopia Theatre Partner in Youth Festival 
supporting young people to 
create programme and perform 

Create Sheffield Cultural 
Education Partnership 

Partner in Youth Festival 
supporting young people to 
create programme and perform 
Training tasters 
Youth Steering Group for project 

Music in the Round  Partner in Youth Festival 
supporting young people to 
create programme and perform 

 

Page 37



 

Page 8 of 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In line with EDS’s endorsement in September 2022, we have secured 
Project Feasibility Funding to create a Cultural Pipeline Fund of 
£250k, specifically to help arts groups to develop through feasibility 
studies, business planning, funding advice, professional advice, 
mentoring and other activity which will help their organisation to 
develop. The fund is especially designed for smaller, newer groups 
who may not have accessed funding before, from all parts of the city. 
The fund is now open, with two rounds, each closing on 29th February 
and 2nd July. Full details are in the link. 
Cultural Pipeline Fund | Sheffield City Council 

  
 
1.4  
 
 
1.4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4.4 
 
 
 

 
Harmony Works Trust -Charitable Incorporated Organisation 
(CIO) – Project Feasibility Fund 
 
Background 
In 2022 Sheffield City Council was awarded £6.6m Gainshare 
revenue grant from the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority 
to create a Project Feasibility Fund (PFF). The funding enables the 
Council as the accountable body to facilitate the development of 
concepts and ideas into tangible projects to the point of having a 
detailed business case prepared that can be submitted for further 
funding. The PFF can support both capital and revenue projects and 
the September 2022 Finance Committee report  noted approval for 
projects would rest with the Executive Director, City Futures and the 
Director of Finance and Commercial Services using existing Officer 
delegations. 
 
Harmony Works Trust (CIO) 
Harmony Works Trust (CIO) is a charity that seeks to advance 
education in and promote public appreciation for the performing arts; 
in particular but not limited to music and to acquire, preserve, restore 
and maintain the building of historic and architectural interest 
situation in Sheffield currently known as Canada House. 
 
The Council has been working closely with the Sheffield Music 
Academy to develop the city as a more diverse and inviting cultural 
hub and as part of that, the creation of a regional music education 
facility at Castlegate has been developed. In order to progress the 
proposal and secure external funding from organisations such as the 
Arts Council a detailed business case has to be developed. The lead 
party for the project, Harmony Works Trust (CIO), has requested a 
£118,250 contribution from PFF to support the business case 
development process to facilitate the delivery of a £16m capital 
project. 
 
The PFF proposal is supported by Officers and requires EDS 
Committee approval because the approval results in a grant award 
to a third party above the £50,000 which is above the Officer 
delegation threshold permitted under the constitution. 

Page 38

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/your-city-council/cultural-pipeline-fund


 

Page 9 of 13 

 
1.4.5 

 
This Committee is therefore asked to approve the grant award of 
£118,250 to Harmony Works Trust (CIO) for the development and 
completion of a detailed business case for the creation of a regional 
music education hub at Castlegate. 
 
 
 
 

2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE? 
  
2.1 The majority of this report is for information and does not require a 

decision.  However, Members are asked formally to approve the 
allocation of £118,250 Project Feasibility Funding to the Harmony 
Works music education project. 
 
The Harmony Works music education project is repurposing a 
Grade II Listed Building in the heart of Sheffield, with excellent 
public transport, into a home for Sheffield’s award-winning Music 
Hub, Sheffield Music Academy and several music partners.  The 
project fulfils several City Goals: 
 
Goal 2  
We have the education, training, skills and resources we need to pursue our 
curiosity and develop new ideas for the benefit of ourselves, others and 
Sheffield’s reputation regionally, nationally and globally 
 
Goal 3  
We enable all creatives to thrive, from artists & musicians, to scientists & 
technologists, sharing and learning from one another, as part of an enriching 
cultural and creative economy. 
 
Goal 10  
Everyone has good access to people, culture, nature and services no matter 
where they live, what background they come from or what support they need 
 

 Goal 17 
We invest in children, young people and families, giving them a strong start to life 
with affordable, healthy, secure homes and inspiring places to learn, play and 
lead. 
 
The project also contributes to the regeneration of Castlegate and 
allows the reuse and safeguarding of a heritage building. 
 

  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 The process for developing the Cultural Strategy is based on co-

creation and consultation.  The process is designed to be as inclusive 
as possible reflecting the views and input of the sector and relevant 
partners.  The engagement process is underway and uses a variety 
of methodologies from digital surveys, in person sessions, an 
information platform, public meetings and workshops. There will be 

Page 39



 

Page 10 of 13 

specific workshops to ensure that a wide range of voices are heard, 
including 4 youth sessions, South and East Asian arts consultation, 
Black Arts Network, LGBTQIA+ consultation and  
Community/anchor organisations.   This process is guided by the 
Task and Finish Group drawn from the sector. 

 The funding bids and programmes outlined here have been 
developed with multiple partners. 
 
Harmony Works Trust (CIO) have undertaken extensive consultation 
as part of their project development. 

  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality Implications 
  
4.1.1 This process and resulting strategy should have positive equalities 

impacts on the cultural sector in Sheffield, including currently under-
served communities, by bringing the voices of Sheffield’s diverse 
communities and creatives into the development of a renewed 
Cultural Strategy.  Once created, the Strategy will highlight the needs 
and aspirations of diverse Sheffield communities; and will creating a 
stronger strategic context and direction of travel for funding bids. 
 
All the funding bids and programmes outlined in this report have been 
designed with inclusion built in, though partners involved and 
processes/engagement support put in place. 
 
Harmony Works Trust (CIO) is being developed as a city centre 
music hub so that children from across the city can access it, 
widening opportunities and skills development. 
 

  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 The Cultural Strategy is being generously supported with £25k from 

the University of Sheffield, £25k from Arts Council England, and the 
remaining £25k from existing EDS budgets.  We are very grateful to 
the University of Sheffield and Arts Council England for their support.   
 
The funding bids and programmes referred to in the report are 
already fully funded. 
 
The proposed contribution to Harmony Works Trust (CIO) will be 
funded through the Project Feasibility Fund, held by SCC, which is a 
fund originally from South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority 
intended for purposes such as this. 
 

  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  

Page 40



 

Page 11 of 13 

4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Council’s continuing development and implementation of the 
strategy engages its statutory powers under the Local Government 
Act 1972 (LGA 72), specifically section  145 and where those powers 
are not sufficient section 111.  
 
4.3.1.1 Section 145 LGA 72 permits the Council to do, or arrange or 

contribute towards the expenses necessary or expedient for 
activities that include  - (a) the provision of an entertainment 
of any nature or of facilities for dancing; (b) the provision of a 
theatre, concert hall, dance hall or other premises suitable for 
the giving of entertainments or the holding of dances; (c) the 
maintenance of a band or orchestra; (d) the development and 
improvement of the knowledge, understanding and practice of 
the arts and the crafts which serve the arts; (e) any purpose 
incidental to the matters aforesaid, including the provision of 
refreshments or programmes and the advertising of any 
entertainment given or dance or exhibition of arts or crafts held 
by them.  

 
4.3.1.2 Section 111 LGA 72 gives the council  power to do any things 

( whether or not involving the expenditure, borrowing or 
lending of money or the acquisition or disposal of any property 
or rights) which is calculated to facilitate or is conductive or 
incidental to, the discharge of any of their functions.  

 
In relation to the award of the grant to Harmony Works Trust (CIO), 
the Council may use powers in Section 111 LGA 72 or, rely on 
provisions under Section 1 Localism Act  2011 which allows the 
Council to do anything an individual may generally do provided it is 
not prohibited by other legislation.  
 

4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.4 
 
 

The proposed grant would be paid on the condition that Harmony 
Works Trust (CIO) agrees and signs the Council’s standard grant 
agreement. This agreement sets out terms to protect the grant award, 
monitor project delivery and facilitate compliance with relevant law. 
The agreement includes provisions on timescale for project delivery, 
appropriate use of grant funds and includes possible consequence 
such as but not limited to clawback and withdrawal of fund in 
appropriate situations. 
 
The grant award will be assessed in accordance with, and any 
payment made in compliance with the Subsidy Control Act 2022.  
 

 
4.4 

 
Climate Implications 

  
4.4.1 
 
4.4.2 
 
 

Sheffield has adopted a Net Zero 2030 City target. 
 
While the focus of the proposed actions in this report are on cultural 
development, they will indirectly support Sheffield’s work on climate 
change and reaching Net Zero. 

Page 41



 

Page 12 of 13 

 
 
4.4.3 
 
 
 
4.4.4 
 
 
 
4.4.5 
 
 
 
4.4.6 
 
 
4.4.7 

 
The Sheffield Culture Collective Strategy, adopted as an interim, 
already acknowledges the importance of environmental priorities and 
the contribution of culture to the city’s sustainable development. 
 
The updated city Cultural Strategy will be more explicitly 
acknowledge climate change as a key challenge for the city and build 
in additional measures which will help attain Net Zero 2030. 
 
The cultural assets element of the updated Cultural Strategy will 
consider the importance of building reuse for cultural purposes, a less 
carbon-intensive approach to development. 
 
Harmony Works music education project represents the appropriate 
re-use of a significant heritage building in Sheffield City Centre. 
 
While advice has indicated that an overall Climate Impact 
Assessment is not required, relevant projects that result from the 
strategy will have CIAs carried out at the project level. 

  
4.5 Other Implications 
  
 
 

By providing the context for a better-supported cultural sector in 
Sheffield – including for diverse communities – positive impacts in 
economic vibrancy, wellbeing, cohesion and city reputation are 
expected. 

  
  
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
 The proposed allocation of PFF funding to Harmony Works Trust (CIO) 

could be refused.  This would create a funding gap for the project and slow 
or 
stop the development work on the project.  It would put at risk  
significant funds already secured by the project from Levelling Up  
Fund and National Lottery Heritage Fund.  If the project did not  
proceed, this would be a huge loss for the city, especially for our  
young people and music-based groups. 
 

  
  
  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

This report provides a progress update on SCC’s new Strategic 
Approach to Culture.  The recommendations build on previous 
reports in September 2022, February 2023 and September 2023. 
 
The recommendation to support Harmony Works Trust (CIO) with 
Project Feasibility Funding builds on the principles of the Strategic 

Page 42



 

Page 13 of 13 

Approach to Culture, and will create strong positive outcomes for 
education, skills, culture, regeneration and heritage.   
 

 
 

 

5 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



 

Page 45



Page 46



 
 

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 50



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 51



 
 

Page 52



 
 

Page 53



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 54



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 55



Page 56



 

 

Page 57



 
 

Page 58



 

 

Page 59



 

 

Page 60



 

Page 61

https://www.statista.com/statistics/1359146/average-cost-of-rent-by-city-uk/


 

 

Page 62



Page 63



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 64



 
 

Page 65



 

Page 66



• 

• 

• 

Page 67



• 

 

Page 68

https://ich.unesco.org/en/what-is-intangible-heritage-00003


 

• 

• 

• 

Page 69



 
 

Page 70



 

Indicators Data

Business count 2,025

Employment 8,975

Employees 8,804

Turnover (£'000s) 907,741

Page 71



 

     

     

     

     

      

      

      

      

      

                                      

  
  
 

• 

• 

• 

Page 72



• 

• 

• 

Page 73



 

Page 74

https://www.manchester.gov.uk/news/article/9366/living_wage_week_manchester_ma%20kes_strides_in_journey_to_become_a_living_wage_city#:~:text=This%20is%20currently %20set%20at,living%20wage%20(%C2%A310.42


 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 75



Number of NPOs and 

IPSOs (2023-26)

NPO and IPSO Annual 

Funding (2023-26)

Population (Local 

Authority area)

NPO and IPSO Annual 

Funding per capita

Bradford 12 £3,352,434 546,400 £6.14

Bristol 21 £9,215,443 472,400 £19.51

Leicester 21 £6,626,314 368,600 £17.98

Manchester 34 £24,618,070 552,000 £44.60

Newcastle upon Tyne 18 £10,378,672 300,200 £34.57

Leeds 25 £28,948,850 812,000 £35.65

Sheffield 11 £3,668,653 556,500 £6.59

Page 76



 

Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 80



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 84



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 88



 

Page 89



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 90



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 91



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 92



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 93



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 94



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 95



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 96



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

Page 97



 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



City Culture Strategy Task and Finish group membership February 2024 
 
Tom Bird, Sheffield Theatres 
Linda Bloomfield, RivelinCo 
Laura Clarke, Arts Catalyst and Sheffield Culture Consortium 
Karen Durham, Arts Council England 
Surriya Falconer, Sheffield Culture Collective 
Sonia Gayle, African Heritage Culture Forum and Sheffield Culture Consortium 
James Green, artist/musician and Visual Art Panel 
Amina Haruna, DJ, director of Mondo Radio and the founder of Calabash! 
Claire Mappin, Burton Street Project 
Liam O’Shea, No Bounds and Hope Works 
Desiree Reynolds, writer/producer and led for Dig Where you Stand. 
Terezia Rostas, Welcoming Cultures 
Debbie Squire, Sheffield Hallam University 
Kim Streets, Sheffield Museums 
Professor Vanessa Toulmin, University of Sheffield  
 
 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



PART A - Initial Impact Assessment

Proposal Name: SPF Yr2&3 Cultural Programme

EIA ID: 2110

EIA Author: Rebecca Maddox

Proposal Outline: Economic Development, Skills and Culture successfully
bid for Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF) Year 1 for
‘Sheffield Culture Showcase’, a £361,000 programme of
events, city promotion and small grants. We are now
applying for Year 2 (£240, 983) and Year 3 (£297,122)
from South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority
(SYMCA) to create a programme to further build
Sheffield’s reputation as a distinctive, diverse cultural
destination. This programme will be designed with
equalities as a key consideration.

Proposal Type: Non-Budget

Year Of Proposal: 23/24

Lead Director for proposal: Kate Martin

Service Area: Economic Development, Skills and Culture

EIA Start Date: 17/05/2023

Lead Equality Objective: Leading the city in celebrating and promoting inclusion

Equality Lead Officer: Ed Sexton

Decision Type Page 103



Committees: Policy Committees

Economic Development & Skills•

Portfolio

Primary Portfolio: City Futures

EIA is cross portfolio: No

EIA is joint with another organisation: No

Overview of Impact

Overview Summery: This programme will be designed with equalities as a
key consideration. The cultural events programme will
seek out and showcase the diversity of Sheffield’s
creatives, to provide profile and economic benefit to
artists, to attract wider audiences, and to celebrate
Sheffield as a city of many cultures. City Marketing will
take place using high standards of accessibility and
representation. Access considerations are being built
into Look Up and Climbing at the Sky’s Edge, and
learning from Year 1 will be built into future events
supported by SPF2&3. Recruitment for additional staff
will follow SCC best practice for equality and diversity,
with applications sought from under-represented
communities.

Impacted characteristics: Cohesion
Disability
Race
Voluntary/Community & Faith Sectors

•

Consultation and other engagement

Page 104



Cumulative Impact

Does the proposal have a cumulative
impact:

Yes

Consultation and engagement will take place via
workshops with cultural partners, including those with
protected characteristics, to ensure that the programe
is developed to apeal to a diverse audience; with
diverse programming and artists; and with appropriate
access and inclusion built in.

Impact areas: Across a Community of Identity/Interest

Initial Sign-Off

Full impact assessment required: Yes

Review Date: 31/03/2024

PART B - Full Impact Assessment

Cohesion

Staff Impacted: No

Customers Impacted: Yes

Description of Impact: The SPF cultural programme will showcase, engage
with and celebrate a variety of cultures, representing
those who have made their home in Sheffield. This will
be a positive contribution to increasing understanding,
appreciation and cohesion.

Disability
Page 105



Staff Impacted: No

Customers Impacted: Yes

Description of Impact: Events and content created through this programme
will consider and build in as much disability access as
possible, e.g physical access; marketing materials which
are accessible to those with sight or hearing
impairment; commissions not excluding artists with
disabilites (visible or invisible).

Race

Staff Impacted: No

Customers Impacted: Yes

Description of Impact: Cultural events activity is being designed to help make
Sheffield's diverse cultures visible, and will aim to
ensure that organisations and artists from global
majority backgrounds directly benefit, with others,
from commissions and opportunities. The African
Heritage Culture Forum are a key partner.

Voluntary / Community & Faith Sectors

Staff Impacted: Yes

Customers Impacted: No

Description of Impact: The arts and cultural sector intersects with the VCF
sector. We are designing a programme which will
include and benefit a wide range of Sheffield people.

Action Plan & Supporting Evidence

Outline of action plan: Clear development plan for SPF2&3 activity to be put
in place by staff funded through the programme
(content production officer and eventsPage 106



production/commissioning officer) to build equality,
diversity and inclusion into all aspects of the
programme. Staff to be recruited using best practice to
maximise diversity. Diverse representation in all
content produced. Diverse artists and creatives
engaged.

Action plan evidence:

Changes made as a result of action plan:

Mitigation

Significant risk after mitigation measures: No

Outline of impact and risks:

Review Date

Review Date: 31/03/2024

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



Policy Committee Report                                                        April 2022 

 

 
 

Report to Policy Committee 
 
Author/Lead Officer of Report: 
Diana Buckley, Director, Economy, Skills and Culture 
 
 
Tel:  0114 2232378 

 
Report of: 
 

Kate Martin, Executive Director, City Futures 

Report to: 
 

Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee  
 

Date of Decision: 
 

21st February 2024 

Subject: Proposed Capital Programme for 2024/25 
 
 

 
Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes  No   
 
If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   (Insert reference number) 

Has appropriate consultation taken place? Yes  No   
 
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes  No   
 
 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No   
 
If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the report and/or 
appendices and complete below:- 
 
“The (report/appendix) is not for publication because it contains exempt information under 
Paragraph (insert relevant paragraph number) of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended).” 
 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 
This report sets out the key priority areas for capital investment for Economic Development 
and Skills and provides an overview of potential projects and priorities for the years 2024 to 
2029, together with an overview of anticipated developments and challenges up to 2052. 
 
The Committee is asked to endorse the general approach to inform the Council’s 
overarching Capital Strategy (which will be brought to Full Council for approval in March 
2024). 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 109

Agenda Item 9



Page 2 of 7 

 
Recommendations: 
The Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee is recommended to:  
1. Endorse the proposals set out in this report.  
2. Note that the proposals will now be included in the draft Capital Strategy to be submitted 

to Full Council for approval in March 2024 and, if approved:  
a) Officers will work with Members to consult with relevant stakeholders (including with 

partners, staff, trades unions [if required] and in respect of equalities and climate 
change) on the proposals in this report to inform final project proposals;  

b) Officers will work to develop any necessary detailed implementation plans for the 
proposals in this report so that the proposals can be implemented as planned; and  

c) Approval for detailed proposals will be sought as part of the monthly capital approval 
cycle by the Finance Committee. 

 
Background Papers: 

• Appendix 1 
 

Lead Officer to complete: 
 

Finance:  Phil Moorcroft  

Legal:  Gemma Beecroft  

Equalities & Consultation:  N/A – see report  

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Climate:  N/A – see report 
 

 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and the name 
of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

Kate Martin 

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Cllr Martin Smith 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated on the 
Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for submission to the 
Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2.  In addition, any additional forms have been completed 
and signed off as required at 1.  

 Lead Officer Name: 
Ben Morley 

Job Title:  
Head of Strategic Development and External Programmes 

 

 Date: 17 January 2024 

 
 

Page 110



Page 3 of 7 

 
1 BACKGROUND 
  
1.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential 

Code for Capital Finance, which the Council must by law have regard to, includes 
the requirement for a Capital Strategy which:  
 
• sets out a high-level view of how capital investment, capital financing and treasury 

management activities contribute to the provision of services; and  
• provides an overview of how the associated risks are managed.  

  
1.2 This Council’s Capital Strategy takes a 30-year view of capital investment, with a 

detailed 5-year Capital Programme. This includes a 10-year investment pipeline, 
setting out potential projects which we should prioritise for external funding.  

  
1.3 This report sets out recommendations in relation to the element of that Capital 

Strategy related to the functions of the Council that are the responsibility of the 
Economic Development and Skills (EDS)Policy Committee. 

  
 PROPOSAL  
  
1.4 Capital investment in the EDS Policy Committee area is focused on seizing 

opportunities to rebuild and renew our economy whilst becoming a cleaner and 
more sustainable City. We will use capital monies to support our City centre and 
district centres to adapt to the changing economic circumstances to build future 
resilience and growth  

  
1.5 This Report provides an opportunity for the EDS Policy Committee to comment 

upon and develop the proposed Capital Strategy for its areas of responsibility. This 
will then form part of the Council’s overarching Capital Strategy for the year ahead.  

  
1.6 
 
 
 
 
1.7 

It is important that the Council moves towards a ‘rolling’ Capital Strategy which 
does not simply reflect a fixed point in time. It is therefore proposed that the EDS 
Policy Committee reviews its Capital Strategy regularly over the course of the year, 
so it considers emerging pressures and funding streams.  
 
Officers will ensure it is updated and brought back for endorsement as the year 
progresses.  

  
1.8 The proposed projects for the coming year and the long-term forward look are set 

out in Appendix 1. 
  
2 HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE ? 
  
2.1 The proposals in this report are aimed at maximising financial resources to deliver 

Economic Development and Skills outcomes to residents in Sheffield. By delivering 
this investment, the Council seeks to improve the quality of life for the people of 
Sheffield.  

  
2.2 Carbon Net Zero - Our role as a council is to reduce our own emissions and to do 

what we can to enable change across the city. Every potential project will have a 
Climate Impact Assessment completed before it is brought to Finance Committee 
for formal approval, and we will seek to minimise the negative and maximise the 
positive sustainability outcomes from all our projects. 

  
Page 111



Page 4 of 7 

2.3 Equality, diversity and inclusion – The Council is committed to promoting 
equality, diversity and inclusion. Every potential project will have an Equality Impact 
Assessment completed before it is brought to Finance Committee for formal 
approval.  

  
2.4 As the new Corporate Plan emerges, we will continue to ensure that our 

committee and service capital priorities link and feed into the broader corporate 
priorities. We’ll also align our capital projects with the Sheffield City Goals 
framework which aims to deliver a city where everyone, no matter who they are or 
where they come from, can live well and be part of Sheffield's story on terms that 
make sense to them. 

  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 Any required consultation will be carried out prior to formal capital approval of the 

schemes being brought forward to Finance Committee.  
  
  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality Implications 
  
4.1.1 Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) will be conducted for all the endorsed 

proposals within this report as they are brought forward through the usual Capital 
Approvals Process.  

  
4.1.2 EIAs (Equality Impact Assessment) are live documents and will be kept up to date 

as proposals are further developed and, as appropriate, consulted upon. 
  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 
 
 
 

There are no financial or commercial implications arising directly from this report as 
this report is not approving any individual schemes. Financial and commercial 
considerations will be considered for each individual project as they are brought 
forward through the standard Capital Approvals Process. 

  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 

The Local Government Act 2003 sets out a framework for the financing of capital 
investments in local authorities. In accordance with the provision of the Act, and 
regulations thereunder, local authorities must have regard to the requirements set 
out in the Prudential Code for Capital Finance produced by the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  
 
The Prudential Code is a professional code of practice to support local authorities’ 
decision making in the areas of capital investment and financing. One of the 
requirements of the Code is a Capital Strategy.  

  
4.3.3 The recommendations in this Report contribute to the process of setting a Capital 

Strategy but do not otherwise have any immediate legal implications. 
  
4.3.4 Implementation of the specific proposals outlined in this report will require further 

decisions in due course, which will need to be made in accordance with the Council 
Constitution. It is important to note that in making these decisions, full consideration 
of the Council’s legal duties and contractual obligations will be needed. 

Page 112



Page 5 of 7 

  
4.4 Climate Implications 
  
4.4.1 Climate Impact Assessments (CIA) will be developed for all endorsed projects 

within this report as they are brought forward through the usual Capital Approvals 
Process.  

  
4.4.2 CIAs are live documents and will be kept up to date as proposals are further 

developed and, as appropriate, consulted upon. 
  
4.5 
 
4.5.1 

Other Implications 
 
None 
 

5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 The Council is required to both set a balanced budget and to ensure that in-year 

income and expenditure are balanced. Committee is invited to comment upon and 
endorse the current proposals to form part of the Council’s wider Capital Strategy 
for 2024/25. 

  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 
 

Members are asked to note the unsustainable financial position highlighted by the 
medium-term financial analysis presented to Strategy and Resources Committee in 
September 2023.  

  
6.2 This report and its recommendations set out how capital projects can continue to 

be developed and delivered, despite the limited resources available and continue to 
deliver quality infrastructure for the people of Sheffield. 

 
 

Page 113



Page 6 of 7 

Appendix 1 
 
Proposed Capital Strategy submission for the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee 
for 2024/25 
 
 
 

Page 114



Policy Committee Report                                                        April 2022 

 
 
 
 

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 116



Policy Committee Report                                                        April 2022 

 

 
 

Report to Policy Committee 
 
Lead Officer of Report: Diana Buckley, Director 
of Economy, Skills and Culture 
 
Tel: 0114 474 1682 

 
Report of: 
 

Kate Martin, Executive Director, City Futures 

Report to: 
 

Economic Development and Skills Policy 
Committee 

Date of Decision: 
 

21st February 2024 

Subject: Economic Development and Skills Policy 
Committee Climate Statement 
 
 

 
Type of Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) undertaken Initial X Full   
 
Insert EIA reference number and attach EIA 

 
EIA ID: 2455 
 

Has appropriate consultation/engagement taken place? Yes X No   
 
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes X No   
 
 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No X  
 
If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the 
report and/or appendices and complete below: - 
 

 
Purpose of Report: 
 
The Committee Climate Statements: 
 

1. Respond to the Annual Climate Progress Report 2022/23 in a timely 
manner. 

2. Restate the cross-party council commitment to taking what action we can to 
address the climate emergency, adapt our city and council for a changing 
climate and reduce emissions to achieve our ambition to be a net zero city 
and council by 2030.  

3. Increase understanding of the impact climate change will have on 
committees, the opportunities that tackling climate change offers, and the 
contribution to climate and net zero action each committee is currently 
making and needs to make moving forward. 

  

Page 117

Agenda Item 10



Page 2 of 9 

Recommendations: 
 
On the back of the decision taken by the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee at its meeting held on 13 December 2023, the Economic Development 
and Skills Committee is recommended to: 
 

(a) consider and, if not previously agreed, agree (with or without amendments) 
their respective statement to ensure that the proposed actions contained in 
such statement are reflected in their Work Programme. 

(b) agree to the development of a monitoring process which will be presented to 
Committee for consideration in June 2024. 
 

 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 

• 10 Point Plan on Climate Action 
• Our Council and The Way We Travel Decarbonisation Routemap 
• Annual Climate Progress Report 2022/23 
• Sheffield City Council Constitution of 6 Sep 2023 

 
 

 
Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

Finance: Adrian Hart   

Legal: Louise Bate  

Equalities & Consultation: Ed Sexton   

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed. 

Climate: Mark Whitworth 
 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 

the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

Kate Josephs, Chief Executive 

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Cllr Martin Smith, Chair of the Economic 
Development and Skills Policy Committee 
 
Councillor Tom Hunt, Leader / S&R Chair 
  

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2. In addition, any additional 
forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1.  

 Lead Officer Name: 
Diana Buckley 

Job Title:  
Director of Economy, Skills and Culture 

Page 118



Page 3 of 9 

 Date: 09/02/24 

 
1. 

 
SUMMARY 

  
1.1 The climate emergency is one of the biggest challenges we will face as 

a city, region, country and global community. It is acknowledged that 
achieving net zero by 2030 is going to be extremely challenging but 
publication of the Annual Climate Progress Report (approved by 
Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee 11th December 
2023) has highlighted the scale of the challenge in the public domain.  
 

1,2 The report shows while action is being taken and progress is being 
made in some areas or work, we have not reduced emissions at the 
pace and scale required to meet our 2030 target. It is clear that to 
achieve this target and to stay within the city’s Carbon Budget, urgent 
action is needed at a scale not seen before, and maintaining an 
ambitious target is important in funding discussions and to enable 
robust policy frameworks to be developed. 
 

1.3 Sheffield is not unusual amongst local authorities in the position in 
which we find ourselves. The Committee on Climate Change reported in 
summer 2023 that the lack of investment and consistent policy 
supporting the UK’s legally binding target of achieving net zero by 2050 
means that UK is at risk of missing its 2050 target and the 
announcement from Government in September 2023 to delay key 
climate change related legislation exacerbates this. We face a period of 
increased uncertainty around the policy levers that will be available in 
the coming years to support us to deliver our climate action at pace and 
at scale. We are working closely with other leading local authorities to 
both seek to influence government to make the policy changes needed 
to escalate our activity, and to explore options for seeking investment.  
 

1.4 Further to this, significant additional resources from central government 
will be required to help us to meet our ambitions and realise the 
opportunities that climate action brings. We will continue to work with 
government and the Mayoral Combined Authority to influence this. 
 

1.5 While the Sheffield City Council Constitution requires all committees to 
take climate into consideration in decision-making, we think it would be 
helpful to clarify the impacts that climate change will have on 
committees, the opportunities that tackling climate change offers and 
the role that all committees can and need to make towards Sheffield 
achieving its climate and net zero ambitions if we are to succeed. 
 

1.6 The Committee Climate Statements: 
 
1. Publicly respond to the report in a timely manner. 
2. Restate the cross-party council commitment to taking what action we 

can to address the climate emergency, adapt our city and council for 

Page 119



Page 4 of 9 

a changing climate and reduce emissions to achieve our ambition to 
be a net zero city and council by 2030.  

3. Increase understanding of the contribution to climate action that 
each committee is currently and need to make moving forward. 

 
1.7 The statements set out (1) our commitment to addressing climate 

change, (2) how climate change relates to our committees, and (3) how 
it relates to each of our specific policy committees. 
 

1.8 ‘Our commitment to addressing climate change’ reiterates the cross-
party and council-wide commitment to taking what action we can to 
address the climate emergency, adapt our city and council for a 
changing climate and reduce emissions to achieve our ambition to be a 
net zero city by 2030. It also states a commitment to requiring services 
to plan for adapting to the changing climate. 
 

1.9 ‘How climate change relates to our committees’ reiterates the 
constitutional requirement for all committees to consider climate, and 
outline of the specific committees for which further content has been 
developed. 
 

1.10 ‘Our commitment to addressing climate change’ and ‘How climate 
change relates to our committees’ statements were approved by 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee at its meeting held on 13 
December 2023. A decision/approval of these sections is not required 
by this committee. 
 

1.11 ‘How climate change relates to each of our specific policy committees’ 
contains a specific statement from the Economic Development and 
Skills Policy Committee. These statements set out the following against 
the committees remit: 
 

• Related or relevant City/Sector/Council emissions. 
• Impacts of climate change and benefits of acting. 
• How the committee can contribute and support climate action 

through decision-making. 
• Key actions on the current committee work plan and council 

service plans that strongly support climate/net zero. 
 
The document containing the council-wide commitment and statement 
specific to the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee is 
appended to this report. 
 

1.12 The vast majority of the action that is required to tackle climate change 
will have benefits beyond reducing carbon emissions and so the content 
of the statements also draw attention to the socioeconomic, health and 
wellbeing and other benefits to taking action on climate change.  

  

Page 120



Page 5 of 9 

1.13 In order to monitor progress against delivery of the actions detailed in 
the statement, a monitoring process will be developed and presented to 
the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee in June 2024. 

  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE? 
  
2.1 In 2019, the council declared a climate emergency and set an ambitious 

target to become a net zero city and council by 2030. Our vision and the 
actions we are taking have been further set out in the ‘10 Point Plan for 
Climate Action’ and the ‘Our Council and The Way We Travel 
Decarbonisation Routemaps’. 
   

2.2 The Council Plan 2024/25 went to the Strategy and Resources 
Committee on 13th December 2023, and sets out our mission and 
purpose to focus on “people, prosperity and planet” in everything we do. 
The plan was endorsed and is now subject to consultation, will be 
coming back to the Strategy and Resources Committee in February and 
then on to Full Council for full approval. 
 

2.3 The statements will support action within the local authority and city to 
make progress towards net zero and to adapt to climate change by 
increasing understanding of the contribution to climate action that the 
Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee  is currently and 
need to make moving forward through decision-making. 
 

  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 The Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee climate 

statement is for information only and does not explicitly require 
consultation.  
 

3.2 We held a Climate Summit event in November 2022 to bring together a 
wide range of organisations across the city to start exploring the action 
needed on climate change. 
 

3.3 Climate has been a strong theme in the City Goals consultation.  
 

3.4 Individual decisions of the Economic Development and Skills Policy 
Committee are either currently subject to the relevant consultation or 
will be in the future. 

  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality Implications 
  
4.1.1 It is widely recognised that climate change will have a more negative 

effect on people with protected characteristics, particularly people living 
in poverty, people with some long-term health conditions and disabilities 
and people from ethnic minorities, who are disproportionately likely to 
both experience disability and poverty. Young people are also acutely 

Page 121



Page 6 of 9 

impacted, both due to climate anxiety now, and by being more impacted 
by climate change throughout their lifetimes. 
 

4.1.2 The transition to a net zero society is happening independently of any 
decision of Sheffield City Council, but the local authority has an 
ambition to reach net zero by 2030, well ahead of the national target, 
and this creates additional challenges. The Council has a key role to 
play in ensuring that the transition happens in a way which ensures both 
climate justice and social justice. 
 

4.1.3 The statements also draw attention to the socioeconomic, health and 
wellbeing and other benefits to taking action on climate change, 
increase understanding that failing to act to address climate change will 
likely result in wider and greater inequality, and that activity taken to 
address climate change can also address social justice to deliver strong 
co-benefits. 
 

4.1.4 We are committed to ensuring that our action on the climate emergency 
is grounded in our values of promoting equality, diversity and inclusion 
for all. A full Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken 
alongside the creation of the 10 Point Plan for Climate Action in 2022, 
as well as initial assessment for the Our Council and The Way We 
Travel routemaps. 
 

4.1.5 An initial assessment has been undertaken on the Committee Climate 
Statements (2455). As decisions are made on specific decisions, full 
Equality Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for 
individual decision and actions and was not required on the composite 
of Committee Climate Statements.  
 

4.1.6 We further consulted with the Equalities and Engagement service in 
relation to each of the specific committee statements who confirmed 
that the EIA 2455 remains appropriate at this stage on the basis that 
decisions are made on specific decisions, full Equality Impact 
Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision 
and actions and a further Equality Impact Assessment was not required 
at this stage. 
 

  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 There are no financial and commercial implications arising directly from 

this report, however there are financial implications of Net Zero by 2030 
and climate change.  
 

4.2.2 Tackling the climate emergency and responding to the national and 
global changes that are facing the city will require multi-billion-pound 
investment over many years. It was recognised in the 10 Point Plan for 
Climate Action published in 2022 that it will not be possible to find the 
necessary finance within the local authority’s, or the city’s, existing 

Page 122



Page 7 of 9 

resources. One of the ten points in the 10 Point Plan was specifically 
focused on the exploration of external funding streams and this work is 
ongoing.  
 

4.2.3 The Our Council routemap chapter commits the local authority to 
prioritising climate action in our budgeting, and officers will need to work 
with Members to commit to specific sums or projects. Whilst sourcing 
the up-front investment is challenging, decarbonising the Council’s 
estate and fleet can result in savings in ongoing energy costs. 
 

4.2.4 Action will also need to be taken that commits us to working to reduce 
the carbon emissions we are indirectly responsible for through our 
procurement. These may potentially have additional up-front costs but 
decisions will be taken on a case by case basis. 
 

4.2.5 Many of the actions that we will need to take in order to achieve our 
ambitions will require working differently or taking decisions in ways 
which ensure that we do not increase our carbon emissions. Some of 
these decisions may have additional short term costs, but in many 
cases, whole life costing may demonstrate that additional up-front 
investment has long term benefits. In other cases, the action that is 
taken can reduce service costs without significant additional investment 
(for example by reducing the milage of our fleet, changing the way we 
use our equipment or buildings or buying less and reusing more). 
 

4.2.6 The true financial implications of the decarbonisation of the local 
authority are difficult to quantify, and the costs of not taking or delaying 
action are equally difficult to quantify. There is increasing recognition 
that, globally, delayed action will increase the eventual costs. Locally, 
this is more difficult to estimate, but the climate is changing and 
investment in mitigation works that also enable adaptation are likely to 
have long term benefits. 

  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  
4.3.1 There are no legal implications arising out of this report. There may be 

legal implications arising from decisions and actions arising from the 
implementation of proposals, and these proposals and their legal 
implications will be the subject of further reports where required. 

  
4.4 Climate Implications 
  
4.4.1 The Statements in themselves do not increase, maintain or reduce 

GHG emissions against any of the categories. However, they restate 
our climate commitments amidst a challenging time, commit to 
developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, and include 
an overview of and commitment to the decisions that committees intend 
to take to support and accelerate net zero and climate action at pace 
and scale.  
 

Page 123



Page 8 of 9 

4.4.2 By communicating commitment and increasing understanding of how 
the Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee can support 
delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-
making, it is considered that if utilised, they have the potential to 
contribute to large reductions in emissions and increased climate action 
at pace and scale over the coming years and support an overall 
moderate decrease in emissions and climate adaptation for the future.  
 

4.4.3 It is important to note however that realisation of climate benefits is 
reliant on future decision-making being in line with the commitments 
outlined.  
 

4.4.4 Decisions are made on specific decisions and action, and initial/full 
Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for 
individual decision and actions. 

  
4.5 Other Implications 
  
4.5.1 Human Resources 
  
4.5.1.1 There are no HR implications arising directly from this report, however 

there may be HR implications arising from decisions and actions arising 
from the implementation of proposals. 
 

4.5.1.2 We need actions that support the council to become a climate 
competent organisation, employees to become carbon literate, to 
include our position in induction and in job roles and descriptions, and it 
is clear that the action that is needed to make both the Council and city 
net zero will require employees across the organisation to play their 
part. As time goes on, retraining is likely to be needed for employees, 
including those in roles working with technology that becomes obsolete. 
 

4.5.1.3 Proposals and their HR implications will be the subject of further reports 
where required. 
 

4.5.2 Public Health 
  
4.5.2.1 There are no public health implications arising directly from this report, 

however there may be public health implications arising from decisions 
and actions arising from the implementation of proposals. 
 

4.5.2.2 The climate emergency is recognised by the Director of Public Health 
as a public health emergency. Climate change is the greatest global 
health threat facing the world in the 21st century, but it is also the 
greatest opportunity to redefine the social and environmental 
determinants of health. It threatens to undermine the last 50 years of 
gains in public health, intensifying heatwaves and extreme weather 
events, worsening flood and drought, altering the spread of infectious 
diseases, and exacerbating poverty and mental ill-health. However – 
and crucially - the response to climate change brings immense benefits 

Page 124



Page 9 of 9 

for human health in Sheffield, with the potential for cleaner air, healthier 
diets, and a more liveable city. 
 

4.5.2.3 Across all the work that we do to mitigate and adapt to climate change, 
it will be important to understand where our actions might widen 
inequalities and then act to mitigate against that widening of 
inequalities, for example, through provision of additional support to 
those people that are most impacted by the effects of climate change. 

  
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 Not providing committee climate statements considered due to the 

resource required to collate. 
 

5.2  Providing more detailed Committee Climate Statements that provided 
an overview of strategic climate goals, with each Chair then reading the 
committees statement publicly at their respective committee meeting 
following release of the report. 

  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 It is important that the response to the Annual Climate Progress Report 

is open and transparent in setting out the challenges which the local 
authority faces in making progress and clarifies future expectations on 
the part we all have to play in addressing climate change. 
  

6.2 Committee do not currently have specific strategic goals for climate. 
The process required to develop these, and have the statements 
approved to be read at each committee meeting meant that option 5.2 
was not feasible with the available resource and timeframe. 
 

 
 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



 

1 

 

 

Sheffield City Council 

Our Statement of Climate 
Commitments

December 2023

Page 127



 

2 

 

Contents 
Our commitment to addressing climate change 3 
How climate change relates to our committees 3 
Policy Committee Statements 4 

Transport Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee 4 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 8 
Finance Committee 10 
Housing Policy Committee 12 
Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee 15 
Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee  17 
Waste and Street Scene Policy Committee 19 
Education, Children and Families Policy Committee 22 
Adult Health and Social Care Policy Committee 23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 128



 

3 

 

Our Commitment to Addressing Climate 
Change 
 
On 11th December 2023, the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee 
approved the first Annual Climate Progress Report since Sheffield City Council 
declared a climate emergency in 2019 and set an ambitious target to be a net zero 
city by 2030.  
This report highlighted that progress has been made, however it is not at the pace 
and scale needed to meet our 2030 target: 

• 12.03% reduction in Sheffield City CO2e emissions between 2017 and 2021 
• 3% reduction in Sheffield City Council CO2e emissions between 2019 and 

2022 
• Sheffield is expected to exceed its recommended carbon budget for 2018-

2022 

The climate emergency is one of the biggest challenges we will face as a city, 
region, country and global community. Following the announcement from 
Government in September 2023 to delay key climate change related legislation, we 
face a period of uncertainty around the policy levers that will be available in the 
coming years to support us to deliver our climate action at pace and at scale.  
Further to this, significant additional resources from central government will be 
required to help us to meet our ambitions and realise the opportunities that climate 
action brings.  We will continue to work with government and the South Yorkshire 
Mayoral Combined Authority to influence this. 

We, as elected Members, wish to restate our support and commitment to the targets 
that Sheffield has set around addressing climate change. We remain committed to 
tackling challenges that can be addressed by this council, using the opportunities 
and levers that are available to us. We also commit to developing council-wide 
climate adaptation plans within each of our service areas. By working together with 
Sheffield’s communities, businesses, institutions and partner organisations to reduce 
our carbon emissions and adapt to our changing climate, we can minimise the 
impact of change, realise the widespread benefits of investing in homes and new 
technologies, and address issues around social justice. 

 

How Climate Change Relates to Our 
Committees 
 
It is stated in the Sheffield City Council Constitution under the council functions of 
each committee that ‘when devising policy, evaluating service delivery and taking 
decisions the committee must consider…climate and biodiversity’.  In relation to 
climate change, each of our committees’ work is impacted and affected by other 

Page 129



 

4 

 

committees’ decisions, and we will only succeed if we take a cross-committee 
approach to climate action. 

The following pages set out how climate change relates to the nine policy 
committees and highlights key activity on the current work plans and service plans 
that support net zero and address climate change.

Page 130



 

5 

 

Policy Committee Statement 
 
Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee 
 
In 2021, business and industry in Sheffield was responsible for 27% of greenhouse 
gas emissions generated in the city. As well as being a significant contributor to the 
city’s emissions, the transition to a net zero economy has profound implications for 
Sheffield’s economy. With the necessary investment from Government, there is the 
opportunity for significant growth and new jobs in the low carbon economy. At the 
same time, businesses that improve their energy efficiency can reduce costs, and 
finance and investment is increasingly dependent on clear commitments to 
becoming environmentally sustainable: businesses which do not become 
environmentally sustainable will risk becoming uncompetitive, reducing financing and 
income options.  

The city needs to ensure that the workforce has the skills needed to enable a 
transition to net zero economy, and to harness the opportunities that the scale of 
activity required provides. Some skills and jobs are likely to become obsolete, and 
existing employees will require retraining to ensure that the transition is a fair one. 

The impacts of extreme weather events are also likely to have an impact on the 
economy, with heat waves, extreme cold and flooding all creating significant risks for 
businesses and the culture sector. 

This committee will contribute to our net zero ambitions and to adapting to climate 
change, at the same time as supporting the economy, jobs, skills and culture, by 
taking decisions which: 

• raise awareness to support businesses and organisations to decarbonise and 
to adapt to climate change 

• maximise the potential of local academic and business strengths in the low 
carbon economy to support green economic growth, including through 
innovation and research and development 

• support indigenous and new businesses (both new start-ups and inward 
locations) to maximise the opportunities presented in the low carbon economy 

• ensure that the future workforce is equipped with the skills to take advantage 
of jobs and opportunities presented by the transition to net zero and that 
funding drawn into the city generates local wealth by providing jobs for local 
people 

• support the culture sector to be part of the transition, harnessing its potential 
to inspire and facilitate change in the city 

• give consideration of every opportunity for investing in renewable energy 
projects on council land and buildings to generate energy and income. 

 

Key Actions 

Page 131



 

6 

 

1. Our business and 
industry 
decarbonisation 
Routemap 

The 10 Point Plan committed the local authority to 
developing plans (routemaps) for the decarbonisation of 
seven sectors, including business and industry. This will 
involve engaging with businesses and their 
representatives and will need to consider both how 
businesses decarbonise their processes and operations, 
and how commercial landlords can be influenced and 
encouraged to decarbonise their buildings. 
 

2. Low Carbon 
Business Support 
Programme 

£1.292m of Shared Prosperity Fund finance will be used to 
support Sheffield small and medium sized enterprises 
(SMEs)s to improve their energy efficiency through energy 
audits and grants. The committee will continue to receive 
reports on performance of the programme. 
 

3. Investment Zone Ensure that the South Yorkshire Investment Zone has net 
zero capabilities and maximises the business opportunities 
for the clean energy production and green technology 
sectors as well as their supply chains. 

4. Sustainable 
Community and 
Cultural Assets 
Project 

£2.3m of Shared Prosperity Fund finance will be used to 
support Sheffield cultural and community organisations to 
improve the energy efficiency of their buildings. The 
committee will continue to receive reports on the 
performance of the programme. 
 

5. Employment and 
Skills Strategy 
 

The low-carbon economy creates significant opportunities 
for Sheffield, as demand for sustainability professionals 
beyond ‘traditional’ green economic sectors. Green skills 
are integral to the drive of clean, inclusive growth in 
Sheffield, as products, services and processes are 
adapted to account for climate change and organisations 
respond to environmental regulations and corporate social 
responsibility expectations.  Green skills and jobs will 
therefore feature prominently in the new Employment and 
Skills Strategy to be delivered in 2024. 
 

6. Economic 
Recovery Fund 
 

The Economic Recovery Fund will offer a range of support 
for beneficiary organisations. This will include providing 
advice and information to raise awareness of the climate 
emergency and empower beneficiaries to make decisions 
that will contribute to the city’s net zero goals. 

 

Page 132



Climate Change Impact Assessment Summary

Initial Assessment Summary Full Assessment Summary 
Project/Proposal Name Committee Climate Statements Portfolio City Futures

Committee Strategy and Resources Lead Member Cllr Tom Hunt

Strategic Priority Clean Economic Growth Lead Officer William Stewart

Date CIA Completed 27/11/23 CIA Author Laura Ellendale

Sign Off/Date 27/11/23

Project Description and CIA 

Assessment Summary

>=27

Rapid Assessment
21-26

Buildings and Infrastructure Yes Influence Yes
12-20

Transport Yes Resource Use Yes
3-11

Energy Yes Waste Yes 0-2

Economy Yes Nature/Land Use Yes

Adaptation Yes

Chesterfield Borough Council Climate Impact Assessment Tool provided inspiration for this tool.

The project will achieve a moderate decrease in CO2e emissions compared to 

before.

The project will acheve a significant decrease in CO2e emissions compared to 

before.

The project can be considered to achieve net zero CO2e emissions.

Project Description:

Composite of Committee Climate Statements that:

1. Respond to the Annual Climate Progress Report 2022/23 in a timely manner. 

2. Restate the cross-party council commitment to taking what action we can to address the climate emergency, adapt 

our city and council for a changing climate and reduce emissions to achieve our ambition to be a net zero city and 

council by 2030. 

3. Increase understanding of the impact climate change will have on committees, the opportunities that tackling 

climate change offers, and the contribution to climate and net zero action each committee is currently making and 

needs to make moving forward.

Overview of Climate Impact:

The Statements in themselves do not increase, maintain or reduce GHG emissions against any of the categories. 

However, they restate our climate commitments amidst a challenging time, commit to developing council-wide service 

climate adaptation plans, and include an overview of and commitment to the decisions that committees intend to take 

to support and accelerate net zero and climate action at pace and scale. 

By communicating commitment and increasing understanding of how committees can support delivery of those 

commitments at pace and scale through decision-making, it is therefore considered that if utilised, they have the 

potential to contribute to large reductions in emissions and increased climate action at pace and scale over the 

coming years. the statements will support an overall moderate decrease in emissions. It is important to note however 

that realisation of this is reliant on future decision-making being in line with the commitments made.  

Decisions are made on specific decisions and action, and initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where 

appropriate for individual decision and actions. On that basis, further assessment is not required on the Statements.

Does the project or proposal have an impact in the following areas?  Select all those that apply.  Only complete the 

sections you have selected here in the assessment.

The project will increase the amount of CO2e released compared to before.

The project will maintain similar levels of CO2e emissions compared to before.

P
ro

g
re

ss To
w

a
rd

s N
e

t Z
e

ro

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Adaptation

Nature/Land Use

Waste

Resource Use

Influence

Economy

Energy

Transport

Buildings

Initial Assessment Summary

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Adaptation

Nature/Land Use

Waste

Resource Use

Influence

Economy

Energy

Transport

Buildings

Full Assessment

P
age 133

https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/climate-change-impact-assessment-tool


Initial Assessment

Category Impact Description of Project Impact Score

Buildings and 

Infrastructure

Construction The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

10
The project will significantly increase the amount 

of CO2e released compared to before.

Use The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

9
The project will increase the amount of CO2e 

released compared to before.

Land use in development The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

8

7

Transport Demand Reduction The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

6

Decarbonisation of Transport The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

5

Public Transport The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Increasing Active Travel The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

4

3

Energy Decarbonisation of Fuel The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

2

Demand Reduction/Efficiency 

Improvements

The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

1

The project will achieve a significant decrease in 

CO2e emissions compared to before.

The project will maintain similar levels of CO2e 

emissions compared to before.

The project will achieve a moderate decrease in 

CO2e emissions compared to before.

P
ro

g
re

ss To
w

a
rd

s N
e

t Z
e

ro

P
age 134



Increasing infrastructure for 

renewables generation

The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

0
The project can be considered to achieve net 

zero CO2e emissions.

Carbon 

Negative

The project is actively removing CO2e from the 

atmosphere.

Economy Development of low carbon 

businesses

The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Increase in low carbon 

skills/training

The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Improved business 

sustainability

The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Influence Awareness Raising The Statements publicly communicate and restate our climate commitments to taking what action we can to address 

the climate emergency, adapt our city and council for a changing climate and reduce emissions to achieve our 

ambition to be a net zero city and council by 2030, and state how all policy committees intend to support delivery of 

those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making across the council and city. Decisions relevant to this 

category are made on specific decisions and action, and initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared 

where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to 

reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not required for specific categories.

1

Climate Leadership The Statements publicly communicate and restate our climate commitments to taking what action we can to address 

the climate emergency, adapt our city and council for a changing climate and reduce emissions to achieve our 

ambition to be a net zero city and council by 2030, and state how all policy committees intend to support delivery of 

those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making across the council and city. The statements also 

commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

0

Working with Stakeholders The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Resource Use Water Use The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Food and Drink The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

P
age 135



Products The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Services The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

1

Waste Waste Reduction The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Waste Hierarchy The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Circular Economy The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Nature/Land Use Biodiversity The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Carbon Storage The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Flood Management The Statements communicate our climate commitment, and increasing understanding of how committees can support 

delivery of those commitments at pace and scale through decision-making relevant to this category. The statements 

also commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our 

services to changing climate. Decisions relevant to this category are made on specific decisions and action, and 

initial/full Climate Impact Assessments will be prepared where appropriate for individual decision and actions, setting 

how both adaptation and mitigation we will take to reduce climate impacts. On that basis, further assessment is not 

required for specific categories.

4

Adaptation Exposure to climate change 

impacts

The statements commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation plans, which will set out how we will 

adapt our services to changing climate. The climate emergency is one of the biggest challenges we will face as a city, 

region, country and global community. By restating our committement commit to developing council-wide Climate 

Adaptation Plans within each of our service areas. By restating our support and commitment to the targets that Sheffield 

has set around addressing climate change, to tackling challenges that can be addressed by this council, and using the 

opportunities and levers that are available to us working together with Sheffield’s communities, businesses, institutions 

and partner organisations we support further reduction to our carbon emissions and adapt to our changing climate, 

minimising the impact of change, realising the widespread benefits of investing in homes and new technologies, and 

addressing issues around social justice. The statements commit us to developing council-wide service climate 

adaptation plans, which will set out how we will adapt our services to changing climate.

3

P
age 136



Vulnerable Groups It is widely recognised that climate change will have a more negative effect on people with protected characteristics, 

particularly people living in poverty, people with some long-term health conditions and disabilities and people from 

ethnic minorities, who are disproportionately likely to both experience disability and poverty. Young people are also 

acutely impacted, both due to climate anxiety now, and by being more impacted by climate change throughout their 

lifetimes. The Council has a key role to play in ensuring that the transition happens in a way which ensures both climate 

justice and social justice. The statements also draw attention to the socioeconomic, health and wellbeing and other 

benefits to taking action on climate change, increase understanding that failing to act to address climate change will 

likely result in wider and greater inequality, and that activity taken to address climate change can also address social 

justice to deliver strong co-benefits. The statements commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation 

plans, which will set out how we will adapt our services to changing climate.

3

Just Transition It is widely recognised that climate change will have a more negative effect on people with protected characteristics, 

particularly people living in poverty, people with some long-term health conditions and disabilities and people from 

ethnic minorities, who are disproportionately likely to both experience disability and poverty. Young people are also 

acutely impacted, both due to climate anxiety now, and by being more impacted by climate change throughout their 

lifetimes. The Council has a key role to play in ensuring that the transition happens in a way which ensures both climate 

justice and social justice. The statements also draw attention to the socioeconomic, health and wellbeing and other 

benefits to taking action on climate change, increase understanding that failing to act to address climate change will 

likely result in wider and greater inequality, and that activity taken to address climate change can also address social 

justice to deliver strong co-benefits. The statements commit us to developing council-wide service climate adaptation 

plans, which will set out how we will adapt our services to changing climate.

3

P
age 137



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 138



PART A - Initial Impact Assessment

Proposal Name: Committee Climate Statements

EIA ID: 2455

EIA Author: Laura Ellendale

Proposal Outline: Public facing composite of Committee Climate
Statements to: 1. Respond to the Annual Climate
Progress Report 2022/23 in a timely manner. 2. Restate
the cross-party council commitment to taking what
action we can to address the climate emergency, adapt
our city and council for a changing climate and reduce
emissions to achieve our ambition to be a net zero city
and council by 2030. 3. Increase understanding of the
impact climate change will have on committees, the
opportunities that tackling climate change offers, and
the contribution to climate and net zero action each
committee is currently making and needs to make
moving forward.

Proposal Type: Non-Budget

Year Of Proposal: 22/23

Lead Director for proposal: William Stewart

Service Area: Sustainability and Climate Change

EIA Start Date: 11/20/2023

Lead Equality Objective: Break the cycle and improve life chances

Equality Lead Officer: Ed Sexton
Page 139



Decision Type

Committees: Policy Committees

Housing
Adult Health & Social Care
Communities, Parks & Leisure
Economic Development & Skills
Education, Children & Families
Strategy & Resources
Transport, Regeneration & Climate
Waste & Street Scene

•

Portfolio

Primary Portfolio: City Futures

EIA is cross portfolio: Yes All

EIA is joint with another organisation: No

Overview of Impact

Overview Summery: It is widely recognised that climate change will have a
more negative effect on people with protected
characteristics, particularly people living in poverty,
people with some long-term health conditions and
disabilities and people from ethnic minorities, who are
disproportionately likely to both experience disability
and poverty. Young people are also acutely impacted,
both due to climate anxiety now, and by being more
impacted by climate change throughout their lifetimes.
The transition to a net zero society is happening
independently of any decision of Sheffield City Council,
but the local authority has an ambition to reach net
zero by 2030, well ahead of the national target, and
this creates additional challenges. The Council has a
key role to play in ensuring that the transition happens
in a way which ensures both climate justice and social
justice. The statements also draw attention to the
socioeconomic, health and wellbeing and other

Page 140



benefits to taking action on climate change, increase
understanding that failing to act to address climate
change will likely result in wider and greater inequality,
and that activity taken to address climate change can
also address social justice to deliver strong co-benefits.
We are committed to ensuring that our action on the
climate emergency is grounded in our values of
promoting equality, diversity and inclusion for all. A full
Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken
alongside the creation of the 10 Point Plan for Climate
Action in 2022, as well as initial assessment for the Our
Council and The Way We Travel routemaps. An initial
assessment has been undertaken on the Committee
Climate Statements. As decisions are made on specific
decisions, full Equality Impact Assessments will be
prepared where appropriate for individual decision and
actions and is not required on the statements.

Impacted characteristics: Age
Cohesion
Disability
Health
Poverty & Financial Inclusion
Pregnancy/Maternity
Race
Religion/Belief
Sex
Carers
Other

•

Impacted local area(s): All

Consultation and other engagement

Cumulative Impact

Does the proposal have a cumulative
impact:

Yes

Impact areas: Year on Year, Geographical Area, Across a CommunityPage 141



of Identity/Interest

Initial Sign-Off

Full impact assessment required: No

Review Date: 11/20/2023

Action Plan & Supporting Evidence

Outline of action plan:

Action plan evidence:

Changes made as a result of action plan:

Mitigation

Significant risk after mitigation measures:

Outline of impact and risks:

Review Date

Review Date: 11/20/2023

Page 142



Policy Committee Report                                                        May 2023 

 

 
 

Report to Policy Committee 
 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:  Richard Smith 
 
Tel:  07810 856138 

 
Report of: 
 
 

Lifelong Learning and Skills Advisory Board Quality 
update 

Report to: 
 
 

Economic Development and Skills Policy 
Committee meeting 

Date of Decision: 
 

21 February 2024 

Subject: To provide the committee with updated information 
about current provision being offered through the 
Lifelong Learning and Skills service 
 

 
Type of Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) undertaken  Initial  Full X  
 
Insert EIA reference number and attach EIA (1266) 

 
 
 

Has appropriate consultation/engagement taken place?  Yes X No   
 
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes X No   
 
 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No X  
 
If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the 
report and/or appendices and complete below:- 
 

 
Purpose of Report: 
 
This report is a briefing to the committee with updated information about provision 
in our service up to 31 December 2023 as presented to the Lifelong Learning and 
Skills Advisory Board in January 2024. 
 
This report contains statistical information about the service, the numbers of 
learners being supported and the quality of our provision.   
 
Lifelong Learning and Skills delivers the following provision to learners in Sheffield:  

• Study Programme provision to young people with complex additional needs 
(High Needs) through Sheaf Training (aged 16-24) 

• Family, Adult and Community Education through FACES 
• Apprenticeship Provision  

 
Our OFSTED report was issued on 23 August 2023 and determined that Lifelong 
Learning and Skills is a Good service overall with some Outstanding areas, 
including our Adult and Community Learning provision and provision for High 

Page 143

Agenda Item 11



Page 2 of 7 

Needs learners at Sheaf Training as well as Good provision for apprentices.   
 
We are determined to continue to develop the service and to develop the quality of 
our provision whilst also extending our reach to those furthest from the labour 
market.  Following our recent Advisory Board (governing body) we wish to provide 
the committee with an update to our current delivery position and developments 
from the service in the area of post-16 learning and skills development. 

 
Recommendations: 
 
The Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee is recommended to: 
 

1) Note the content of the report. 
2) Note that officers will provide the committee with updated information at 

regular intervals to ensure the activities of the service are appropriately 
shared to demonstrate performance and the against the grant funding 
received. 

 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Lifelong Learning and Skills performance report  
 
Adult Education Budget Commissioning Strategy 18th January 2023 
 
 
 
 

Page 144

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s56870/Form%202%20-%20Policy%20Committee%20Report%20AEB%20Commissioning%20VFinal.pdf


Page 3 of 7 

 
Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

Finance:  (Insert name of officer consulted) 
Kayleigh Inman – for previous Committee decision 

Legal:  (Insert name of officer consulted) 
Rike Ridings – for previous Committee decision  

Equalities & Consultation:  (Insert name of officer 
consulted) 
Bashir Khan – for previous Committee decision 

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed. 

Climate:  (Insert name of officer consulted) 
Victoria Penman – for previous Committee 
decision 

 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

Meredith Dixon-Teasdale  

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Cllr Martin Smith 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2.  In addition, any additional 
forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1.  

 Lead Officer Name:  Richard Smith  
 

Job Title: Service Manager - FACES 
 
 

 Date: 26/01/24  

 
 

Page 145



Page 4 of 7 

 
  
1. PROPOSAL  
  
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4 

The Lifelong Learning, and Skills service receives grant funding and High 
Needs Block funding to enable us to provide education to disadvantaged 
communities in Sheffield and to learners aged 16-24 and adult learners 
who require foundational education provision to develop their community 
engagement, health and wellbeing and skills for work.   
 
The service is delivered through the following funding streams: 1) Grant 
funding through the Adult Education Budget from the South Yorkshire 
Mayoral Combined Authority (SYMCA) for the delivery of Adult and 
Community Learning activity across the city.  2) The service also 
receives funding through the Education and Skills Funding Agency 
(ESFA) to provide Study Programme provision to 16-24 year olds with 
High Needs, plus a top-up amount from the High Needs Block funding in 
Education and Skills to provide the individual and small group support 
specified in post-16 learners’ Education, Health and Care plans.  3) 
Finally, we also receive external funding through the ESFA to enable 
delivery of our Apprenticeship provision. 
 
The AEB grant is managed and administered by the Family Adult 
Community Education Service who commission a proportion of the grant 
for adult learning provision.  Approval for the current procurement 
framework and for this AEB expenditure has already been granted by the 
EDS committee.  This provision is procured from suitably qualified and 
experienced providers via a framework arrangement in accordance with 
Regulations 74 – 76 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 
 
We would like to provide the committee with an update about our current 
delivery across Lifelong Learning and Skills and how this external funding 
is being utilised to support Sheffield residents. 

  
  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE ? 
  
  
2.1 
 
2.2 

This report is an update for members. 
 
The Lifelong Learning and Skills Service contributes to the following 
ambitions in the Corporate Plan  
• Tackling inequality and ensuring that everyone has an equal chance 

to access a wide range of opportunities to achieve their full potential 
• Strengthening Community Cohesion so that people get along and 

play an active role as a citizen of the city 
• Enabling people to take charge of their wellbeing and support them to 

stay healthy given the current challenges 
• Tackling Poverty through access of opportunity 
• Support for young adults and adults to access education, 

Page 146



Page 5 of 7 

employment, and training 
• Supporting those furthest from the labour market to gain the skills and 

advice they need to get back into work including transitioning to 
opportunities in key growth skills sectors 

Helping those who face obstacles to find lasting work and meaningful 
learning, including young people, disabled people and those with mental 
health conditions 

  
  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 

The FACES strategy, vision and approaches to service planning and 
delivery and how this was developed to meet the needs of the adults and 
communities across the city, has been shared and consulted with various 
key partners and stakeholders (March 2023). They included briefings to 
Members, presentations to key partners, and surveys with learners. They 
were also shared and consulted with the Further Education 
Commissioner at a National Level. 
 
For AEB provision, consultation through Council Governance structures 
with Local Area Committee Managers was undertaken ahead of the 
current academic year to establish what skills provision was taking place, 
identify gaps in provision and further establish any demand or learning 
need. A similar process will be followed as we begin to plan our 
curriculum for 24/25 in the coming months. 
 
Learners across Lifelong Learning and Skills provision are surveyed at 
key points every year to ascertain if we are meeting their needs, making 
learning accessible, and to reinforce the accuracy of other sources of 
data intelligence for the curriculum plan. For our 16-19 aged SEND 
population, parents are consulted through surveys, parent discussion 
with staff and views gained at review meetings. 
 

  
 

Page 147



Page 6 of 7 

 
  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality Implications 
  
4.1.1 Decisions shared with previous Committee meetings and taken ahead of 

23/24 academic year delivery have taken into consideration the 
requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty contained in Section 149 
(1) of the Equality Act 2010. As part of documenting the meeting of the 
requirements of the duty, we carried out an Equality Impact Assessment 
which highlighted the provision will particularly aim to engage young 
people and adults from disadvantaged areas of the city and/or in 
disadvantaged households and will contribute towards improved financial 
inclusion; include that specifically targeted at people with learning 
difficulties and disabilities; target some specific BME groups and provide 
ESOL for adult learners.   
 
The equality implications have not changed and this agenda item is 
designed as an update to Committee members, rather than a new 
decision to consider. 

  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
 
4.2.3 

Lifelong Learning and Skills officers will be meeting with SYMCA 
officers on 23rd February to discuss our proposed grant allocation for 
24/25.  It is not anticipated that this allocation will change from 23/24.   
 
The update to this Committee is based on the 23/24 grant allocation 
and expenditure to date.  The FACES service continues to deliver 
employment and skills activities to improve the life opportunities for 
Adults and Families across the city. 
 
Financial considerations for expenditure of 2022/23 grant funding has 
already been made ahead of previous Committee decisions about the 
commissioning of a framework arrangement for the procurement of 
adult learning in community settings in accordance with Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 and Contract Standing Orders. 

  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  
4.3.1 
 
 
4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.3 

The processes we follow to commission provision adhere to the council 
procurement regulations and the Public Contract Regulations 2015 
 
By virtue of the statutory instrument South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 
Authority (SI 2020/806), the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 
Authority (SYMCA) exercises, in relation to their area, certain adult 
education functions of the Secretary of State under the Apprenticeships, 
Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009. 
 
Sheffield City Council has a general power under Section 1 of the 

Page 148



Page 7 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 
4.3.4 
 
 

Localism Act 2011 to do anything that an individual may generally do 
provided it is not prohibited by other legislation and the power is 
exercised in accordance with the limitations specified in the Act which 
enables the Council to accept the funding. 
 
The framework terms and conditions and call off terms and conditions 
have been written by the Councils Commercial Legal team.  
 

  
4.4 Climate Implications 
  
4.4.1 
 
 
 
4.4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lifelong learning and Skills is committed to the principle and practice of 
environmental protection and sustainable development, with a focus on 
continuing improvement and reducing pollution.  
 
Whilst the Climate Impact Assessment evidenced a minor reduction in 
emissions the service does play a key role in the community to champion 
an environmentally sustainable approach across its activities and shares 
this knowledge with learners, partners and key stakeholders. This 
includes: 
 

• Adapting and sharing recognised best practice on environmental 
sustainability  

• Delivering learning and skills activities that provide all students 
with opportunities to develop their awareness of sustainability 
issues through sustainability related curriculum, tutoring and 
enrichment activities  

• Promoting reduction of waste of natural resources, energy and 
water 

• Inclusion of sustainability and environmental impact in 
procurement processes 

• Working with local suppliers to ensure that they consider the 
impact on the environment in their roles as educators and 
infrastructure organisations 

  
4.4 Other Implications 
  
4.4.1 None 
  
  
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 No decision is required from Committee, this paper is to provide an 

update on the quality of provision current delivered. 
  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 This paper is to provide an update on the quality of provision current 

delivered. 
 

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 150



Sheffield City Council 

Lifelong Learning and Skills Service   

Performance Report (2023/2024)  

January 2024 
 

Head of Lifelong Learning and Skills: Interim Louise Goddard and Richard Smith 

Service Manager, Family, Adult and Community Education Service (FACES): Richard Smith 

Service Manager Sheaf Training: Louise Goddard 

Apprenticeships Manager: Mat Rodgers 

Quality Manager: Alex Cooke 

 

        

 

 

Page 151



Family and Community Education Service (FACES) 

In year performance: 

This data relates to information produced from 31st December for the LLS Advisory Board in January.   

Community 
Learning  

%  
(change since 
last report) 

Nat Avg 
(22/23) 

Adult Skills /19+ 
Education & 
Training 

%  
( change since 
last report) 

Nat Avg 
(21/22*) 

Retention 97%  95.9% Retention 95.1%         91.9% 

Attendance 95%       88.1% Attendance 96% NK 

Achievement (best 
case) 

94.8%     93.9% Achievement (best 
case) 

88.9%  86.2% 

Further education and skills, Academic Year 2022/23 – Explore education statistics – GOV.UK (explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk) 

Community Learning remains on track with expected performance and currently exceeds the national 
averages within Local Authority benchmarking. 

Retention on Adult Skills regulated delivery has improved from this point last year and is currently in 
line with our service target over the whole year (95%). 

2022/23 Learner information:  

During 22/23, FACES saw 2462 enrolments.  For community learning 77.4% were female and 22.6% 
male.  For adult skills, 68.3% of learners were female and 31.7% male. 

21% of learners identify as White British, 15% as African, 14% as Pakistani, 11% from other White 
backgrounds, 10.6% from Arab nations and 28% from other ethnic groups 

23/24 Recruitment: All FACES Delivery to 31/12/23 

FACES Total Delivery 
Community 

Learning Enrols 
(Numbers)  

19+ Adults Skills 
Enrols (Numbers) 

Regulated Drawdown (£) 

Target enrolments 2,010 968 £  584,000.00 

All Enrolments 731 
(up 292 on this point last year) 

251 
(up 3 on this point last year) 

£ 215,412.84 

 

FACES Direct Delivery to 31/12/23 

FACES Direct Delivery Community Learning 
Enrols (Numbers) 

19+ Adults Skills Enrols 
(Numbers) 

End of year target 
enrolments 1200 510 

Actual enrolments for 
Term 1 517 139 

 

Community Learning courses predominantly work with adult learners who are furthest from the 
labour market and we support them to re-engage with education provision, build basic skills and build 
confidence.  Our adult skills courses support learners to develop skills towards an accredited 
qualifications and are often the next step on for learners who join us for community learning.   

  

Page 152

https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/further-education-and-skills#explore-data-and-files


We have seen a strong increase in community learning numbers during Term 1 of 23/24 from this 
point last year (66%).  Numbers for adult learning have not yet grown as much as community learning, 
we expect to begin to covert community learning learners to our adult courses and support their 
engagement in learning into qualification-based learning.   

Family learning courses (within Community Learning) have seen a large growth in learner numbers.  
We have requests to work with 20+ schools this year to support parents and carers.  We are working 
with Family Hubs to deliver the Making It REAL programme and have recruited a specialist tutor to 
deliver SEND workshops for parents and carers in response to demand from schools.   

Tutors are introducing wider learning; embedding the ‘Green Curriculum’, using the gardens at SYAC 
to promote positive mental health and well-being and introduce discussions around sustainable 
energy.  Learners are given the opportunity to register with local libraries and a tutor has created our 
own class library.  We are introducing digital skills qualifications for ESOL learners to support their 
integration into Sheffield and employability prospects. 

Subcontracting 

Subcontracting Community Learning Enrols 
(Numbers) 

19+ Adults Skills Enrols 
(Numbers) 

End of year target 
enrolments 810 458 

Actual enrolments 
for Term 1 214 112 

 

We subcontracted with 13 local and community organisations in 2023/24.  We have lost one provider 
(The Source) due to them ceasing to trade at the end of 2023.  A further provider has asked to vary 
their contract and significantly reduce their offer.  We have worked with the other 11 providers to 
reallocate resources and ensure that we reach our financial drawdown target again this year.  
Performance management reviews have taken place for each of the providers, and all have shown 
successful practice with no concerns raised to date. 

Multiply Programme update: 

• Delivery of interventions and engagements against Multiply planned numbers in 2023-24 is 
achieved through FACES working with 11 subcontracted community organisations in the city 
and delivering employment related outputs with colleagues in Opportunity Sheffield. 

• Sheffield City Council is performing well against our Multiply grant allocation for Year 2 (Apr 
’23 – Mar ’24).   

• At the end of December 2023, in Year 2 FACES have achieved 676 enrolments onto a short 
Multiply course and engaged with a further 810 learners. 

• We are on track to achieve our planned outcomes for the year.  SYMCA have worked with 
FACES to consider how our contracted providers can support us to address underperformance 
elsewhere in the region. 

• Sheffield City Council (FACES) have varied delivery contracts up to a maximum of 150% of the 
original contract value for providers able to support us.  We have issued contract variations to 
partner organisations to enable overperformance based on our original grant allocation and 
support SYMCA with a regional underspend.  

• SYMCA colleagues have been supportive and expressed that they are pleased with Multiply 
performance in Sheffield. 

• 13 providers have been notified that they have been successful in tendering for a contract to 
deliver Multiply, during the final year (from April 2024 to March 2025).   

Page 153



Apprenticeships 

In year performance: 

Measure %  % data last year  Latest national 
average comparison 

(21/22) 
Retention 83.70%    77.10% 54.8% 

Attendance 97.20% 94.50% Not known 

Achievement (best case or 
current) 

81.70%  77.10% 53.4% 

 
Recruitment: 

Starts from August 23 to July 24 
  Target for the year Actual at December 23 Target remaining 

Recruited 192 92  100 
• Between Aug and Dec 2023, 92 new apprentices were recruited, 12 above target for the period. 
• Improved partnership working with the wider council service has formed a new working group to 

positively promote Apprenticeships within the council. 
• We are reviewing curriculum intent and working with the Council’s HR and Learning and 

Development team to make the most of our Council apprentice offer for a future workforce. 
 

Learners on programme to complete within 2023-2024: 
Hybrid Year-End 2023-2024 Number % 
Male 114 58.10% 
Female 82 41.90% 
Has LLDD/health problems 43 21.90% 
Does not have LLDD/health problems 139 70.90% 
No Information provided 14 7.20% 

 
Achievement to date: 

 Achieved 
 

Best case 
Retained –  
In Year Leavers Withdrawn 

Overall 43.9%  81.7% 83.7% 196 28 
Sites  38.1%  79.6% 80.8% 146 25 
Subcontracted 62.5%  88.0% 92.0% 50 3 

 
End Point Assessment to date: site only data 

Fail Pass Merit Distinction Total 
First Time Pass Rate 
(since last report) 

1 16 3 6 25 96.00%      

 
Learner Support: 
All apprentices are assessed for learning support at the “Information Advice and Guidance” stage 
and then throughout their apprenticeship. If support is required apprentices are referred to our 
Support Officer.  We currently have 28 apprentices receiving support. This ranges from setting up a 
learning difficult assessment, 1 to 1 classroom support, metal health support referral, through to 
pastoral support.  

Page 154



SHEAF Training 

16-19 Study Programme: 

Sheaf Overall 2023/2024 % 
(change since last report) 

Retention 93% 

Attendance 81 %          
Achievement (best case) 93 %          

 

KPIs are not as high as this time last year.  Retention is down by 5.7%, attendance by 10% and best-
case achievement rate reflects the retention rate.   

We are supporting attendance rates to improve.  It is worth noting that Sheaf supports around 6 
learners who face serious issues related to their physical health, mental health and home situations.  
Sheaf continues to support them despite the significant challenges to their attendance and impact 
on the attendance levels in centre.  If we can improve attendance for these learners there should be 
an impact on the overall attendance percentage.   

Achievement predictions would place these as ‘outstanding’ and they currently exceed the rate at 
the end of the last academic year (82.6%). 

Recruitment: 

Total Enrolled Target  
172 200 

 

Of the 172 learners recruited to Sheaf in September, we have retained 161.  Four learners enrolled 
with us in the summer as their second choice and chose to attend their first-choice provider and 
therefore never started.  A further three learners achieved higher than predicted GCSEs and 
therefore were able to attend other providers, with a further two being lost to absenteeism despite 
huge efforts to re-engage the learners back into education and two who have progressed into work. 

Of the learners retained 76% are male and 24% percent are female, with 72% of the learners being 
from an English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish or any other white background.  2% of learners, 
respectively, are from White and Black Caribbean and white and Asian heritage.  11% are from a 
Pakistani background.  5% of our learners are African heritage and 4% have Caribbean heritage. One 
percent chose not to record their ethnic origin.   

Sheaf is not a catchment area provider and therefore can recruit from across the city and not just 
from a certain geographical area so therefore can appear to be not representative of the localities in 
which they sit. 

Learners are given as many opportunities as possible to engage in wider learning, take part in 
enrichment activities in the community, experience work- and work-related learning and have 
opportunities to meet employers.   

During the summer term 2023, learners had 30 separate and different opportunities of this nature 
and this work continues at pace to enable successful and ambitious progression routes. 

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 156



Equality Impact Assessment Number 1266 
 
PART A 
Introductory Information 
 
Proposal name 
 
 

Brief aim(s) of the proposal and the outcome(s) you want to achieve 
The Family Adult Community Education Service (FACES), Lifelong Learning & Skills 
commissions a proportion of the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authorities 
(SYMCA) Adult Education Budget (AEB) annually, to a framework of approved 
suppliers to deliver learning activity within community settings. 

 
This commissioning framework needs to be refreshed after the current 2022/23 
academic year to continue to allow for flexible and agile commissioning to 
ensure that learner's needs are met appropriately. 

 
 

Proposal type     
  Budget             Non Budget   

If Budget, is it Entered on Q Tier? 
  Yes    No 
If yes what is the Q Tier reference  
 
 
Year of proposal (s)  
 
  
21/22 

  
22/23 

  
23/24 

  
24/25 

  other 

 
 
Decision Type 
  Coop Exec 
  Committee (e.g., Health Committee) which committee  
  Leader 
  Individual Coop Exec Member 
  Executive Director/Director 
  Officer Decisions (Non-Key) 
  Council (e.g., Budget and Housing Revenue Account) 
  Regulatory Committees (e.g. Licensing Committee) 
  
Lead Committee Member  
  

 

 
 

Lead Director for Proposal  
Andrew Jones 

Commissioning of the Adult Education Budget

Economic Development & Skills

Page 157



Person filling in this EIA form 
Ellie Churchward / Shabaz 
Abbas 

 
 
EIA start date 
 
Equality Lead Officer 
   Adele Robinson 
   Annemarie Johnston 
   Bashir Khan 

  
   Ed Sexton 
   Louise Nunn 
   Beverley Law 

Lead Equality Objective (see for detail) 
 
  

Understanding 
Communities 

  Workforce 
Diversity 

  Leading the city 
in celebrating & 
promoting 
inclusion 

  Break the cycle 
and improve life 
chances 

 
      
Portfolio, Service and Team 
Is this Cross-Portfolio   Portfolio/s  
  Yes    No 
  

Is the EIA joint with another organisation (e.g. NHS)? 
  Yes    No   Please specify  
 
 
Consultation 

Is consultation required? (Read the guidance in relation to this area) 
  Yes    No 

If consultation is not required, please state why 

 
 
Are Staff who may be affected by these proposals aware of them? 
  Yes    No 

Are Customers who may be affected by these proposals aware of them? 
  Yes    No 

If you have said no to either please say why 

Partners, providers, and potential suppliers have already been consulted to ensure 
that the service strategy and curriculum priorities including the thinking and planning 
behind these meets the needs of the adults, residents and communities of the city.

Learners have been consulted through surveys to ascertain if the service is meeting 
their needs, making learning accessible, and to gather interest for future planning and 
coordination of delivery.

14/9/22

Children’s Service

Page 158

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/campaigns/equality-objectives.html


 
 

 

Initial Impact 
Under the Public Sector Equality Duty we have to pay due regard to the need to:  
• eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation  
• advance equality of opportunity  
• foster good relations 

Yes through learner surveys mentioned above (see FACES Strategy which evidences 
data accompanying this report).

See data below:

From FACES: Intent Strategy 2022/2023 
Consultation and Data Intelligence 
Potential providers and advocates for the service were consulted in March 2022. 
The results yield confirms that our strategic thinking and planning is meeting the 
needs of communities. There is relevance in relation to our core offers relating to; 
maths, English, ESOL, digital and employment skills. In addition, it highlighted themes 
which we have targeted to our partner providers in the previous academic year, with a 
view to maintaining these links for delivery, for example, Support Work in Schools, 
Mental Health Awareness, Well-being, and Confidence. 

This survey also identified that the service needs to develop a wider flexibility in 
pathways to employment sectors, widening our course offer to include courses up to 
level 2 for access to Health, Public Service and Care, Retail and Commercial 
Enterprise for example, with digital skills as a key component of all aspects of 
learning. 

Most importantly, we surveyed our learners in March 2022 to ascertain if we were 
meeting their needs, making learning accessible, and to reinforce the accuracy of 
other sources of data intelligence for the curriculum plan. 

When asked what courses learners are interested in - 78% cited English, 51% maths, 
and ESOL 30%; followed by digital skills (28%), employment skills including 
volunteering (37%) and specific programmes such as childcare (31%). When asked if 
a qualification was a key aim over 88% said yes, with only 6% stating a categoric no. 
We wanted to know where learners like to learn, or where is the most convenient. 
Schools and Libraries scored 67% and 69% respectfully, with Community Centres at 
43%, and other places at just over 20%. 

Finally, we needed to understand where the learners that we surveyed live. 
Using the locater indicator from the postcode we can confirm that the top 3 response 
areas are in the most deprived areas of Sheffield. 

Although the number returned is not conclusive, we aim to roll out this survey again 
during each term going forward, to further validate our findings. 

The service is continuing to utilize several aspects of data intelligence to ensure all 
activity is mapped proactively to areas of the city that need adult learning the most. 
This includes, but is not limited to, the following information: 
• • Community Knowledge Profiles 
• • Ward Census Data 
• • NEET unemployment and claimant data 
• • Academic achievement in maths and English at GCSE 
• • Free School Meals 

Page 159

http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/equalities/equality-act/equality-duty


For a range of people who share protected characteristics, more information is 
available on the Council website including the Community Knowledge Profiles. 

Identify Impacts  
Identify which characteristic the proposal has an impact on tick all that apply 
  Health   Transgender 
  Age   Carers 
  Disability   Voluntary/Community & Faith Sectors 
  Pregnancy/Maternity   Cohesion 
  Race   Partners 
  Religion/Belief   Poverty & Financial Inclusion 
  Sex   Armed Forces 
  Sexual Orientation   Other 
  Cumulative  

 
Cumulative Impact 

 
Does the Proposal have a cumulative impact?     
  Yes    No 

 
  Year on Year   Across a Community of Identity/Interest 
  Geographical Area   Other 

 
If yes, details of impact 
 
FACES have been delivering Adult Learning and Skills programmes across the 
city for many years working across the Local Authority Areas (LACs). Many of 
the programmes leading to further opportunities to progress into further 
learning and / or employment. This has been coordinated and planned with 
infrastructure partners and key stakeholders. 
 
An absence of continuation of this service delivery will have a considerable 
impact on potential opportunities for adults and families particularly with the 
current challenges (post pandemic and the current economic situation affecting 
all). 
 
 

 
Local Area Committee Area(s) impacted 
  All    Specific 
 
If Specific, name of Local Committee Area(s) impacted  

 

 

Initial Impact Overview 
Based on the information about the proposal what will the overall equality 
impact? 

 
Is a Full impact Assessment required at this stage?   Yes    No 

 Page 160

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/statutory-equality-duties.html
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/sheffield-profile


If the impact is more than minor, in that it will impact on a particular 
protected characteristic you must complete a full impact assessment below. 

 
Initial Impact Sign Off (EIA Lead to complete) 
 
EIAs must be agreed and signed off by the Equality lead Officer in your 
Portfolio or corporately.  EIA signed off: 

 
  Yes    No 
 

Date agreed                         
 
EIA Lead   

 
 

Part B 

Full Impact Assessment  
 
Health  

Does the Proposal have a significant impact on health and well-being 
(including effects on the wider determinants of health)?  
  Yes   No  if Yes, complete section below 

 
Staff  
  Yes   No  
 

Customers  
  Yes    No  

Details of impact  
 
A proportion of the learning offer provided by FACES is covered through the 
Health and Wellbeing curriculum which is used for the delivery of non-
accredited learning. These programmes have demonstrated that in addition to 
skills development they result in better health outcomes.  
 
In 2015-17 FACES was part of a National Research initiative that 
demonstrated that Adult and Community Learning contributed to improving the 
wellbeing of learners with Mild to Moderate Mental Health. 
 

 
Comprehensive Health Impact Assessment being completed 
  Yes   No  
Please attach health impact assessment as a supporting document below. 
 
Public Health Leads has signed off the health impact(s) of this EIA 
 
  Yes   No  

Name of Health Lead Officer    

Bashir Khan

6/10/22

Page 161



 
 
Age  
 
Impact on Staff  Impact on Customers  
  Yes   No   Yes       No  

 

Details of impact  
 
The Commissioned activities will target learners from age 19+ upwards. 
 
 
 

 

 
Disability   

 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes   No  
 

 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

  

Details of impact  
The provision commissioned is open to all and the service actively supports 
Learners to overcome barriers that may prevent them from accessing  
the learning. This comes in the way of learning support and examples of  
where this has been used by FACES includes providing transport for  
disabled individuals, providing braille learning materials and resources for 
learners who are visually impaired/blind.  From 21/22 data 23% of learners  
undertaking Adult Education Budget (AEB) qualifications had a declared 
disability and/or learning disability and on non-accredited Community 
Learning this was 17% of learners. 

  

  
 
 
Pregnancy/Maternity   
 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  

 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

Details of impact  
 

 
 
Race 
 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
 

 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

Page 162



Details of impact  
 
The provision commissioned will target some specific BAME groups and 
communities of interest and provide ESOL for adult learners and take up will 
be monitored. 
 
ESOL delivery is the services largest curriculum in terms of demand. 
70% of learners undertaking AEB qualifications in 21/22 were BMAER and for 
Community Learning this proportion was 67% of learners. 
 
FACES publicity is always inclusive, and the service has produced learner 
information booklets in a number of different languages. 
 
The service will review the implications of the recent Race Equality 
Commission report and where it is deemed necessary will make improvements 
and take on any further considerations that can help shape the service and the 
changing demographics of the city. 

 

 

Religion/Belief 
 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
 

 
 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

Details of impact  
 
Provision will be inclusive and not tolerate any prejudice or associated related 
incidents. Programme delivery will be mindful of cultural and religious needs  
and this includes times of delivery. 
 
Religion and cultural identity are celebrated in ESOL classes as a way of stoking 
up conversations and dialogue through conversations. 

 
Sexual Orientation 
 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
 

 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

Details of impact  
Provision will be inclusive for all and prejudices and intolerance attitudes/views 
will be dealt with instantly. Ground rules are established at the start of every 
programme/activity showing respect and tolerance for all and diversity is 
celebrated.  
 

 
Gender Reassignment (Transgender) 
 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
 

 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

Page 163



Details of impact  
 
Provision will be inclusive for all and prejudices and intolerance attitudes/views 
will be dealt with instantly. Ground rules are established at the start of every 
programme/activity showing respect and tolerance for all and diversity is 
celebrated.  
 
 

 
Carers 
 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
 

 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

Details of impact  
 

 
Poverty & Financial Inclusion 
 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
 

 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

Details of impact  
Provision will be across the city but prioritised in areas of high need 
(neighbourhoods and communities that have been deemed as areas of 
deprivation according to a range of indices of deprivation). The learning and 
skills activities commissioned will look to improve the life opportunities for 
residents from these communities/neighbourhoods. This will include financial 
inclusion. 
 
 
 

 
Cohesion 
 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
 

 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes   No 

Details of impact  
 
The Commissioned activities will look to improve Integration and Cohesion in 
particular through ESOL classes for Adults whose first language is not English 
and for recently arrivals through the international Humanitarian Displacement 
Initiatives. 
 
 

 
 
Partners 
  Page 164



Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
 

Impact on Customers  
  Yes   No 

Details of impact  
Commissioned activities will take place across the city and will include a 
framework of suppliers that have the appropriate capabilities, skills and 
competencies to deliver – some of these may include third sector voluntary 
and community funded partners.   
 
 
 

 
Armed Forces 
 
Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
 

 
Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

Details of impact  
 
FACES learning programmes are open to all and may appeal to Officers who 
are wanting to retrain, upskill or are seeking new opportunities if they have 
recently been discharged from the armed services. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Other 

 
Please specify 
 
NA 

Impact on Staff  
  Yes    No  
  

Impact on Customers  
  Yes    No  
 

Details of impact  
 

 
Action Plan and Supporting Evidence 

What actions will you take to mitigate any equality impacts identified?  Please 
include an Action Plan including timescales 

 

Supporting Evidence (Please detail all your evidence used to support the EIA)  

 

Page 165



 

 
Detail any changes made as a result of the EIA  

 

 
 

 
Following mitigation is there still significant risk of impact on a protected 
characteristic.     Yes       No 

If yes, the EIA will need corporate escalation? Please explain below

 

 
Sign Off – Part B (EIA Lead to complete) 
 

EIAs must be agreed and signed off by the Equality lead Officer in your 
Portfolio or corporately. Has this been signed off?  
 
  Yes    No 
 

Date agreed                           
 
Name of EIA lead officer  

 
 
 
 

Review Date 

 

FACES Strategy included

31/09/24

Bashir Khan

6/10/22

Page 166


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Work Programme
	8 Culture Strategy
	Sheffield Cultural Strategy - Cultural Audit FINAL
	City Culture Strategy Task and Finish Group Membership
	EIA 2110 - SPF Yr2_3 Cultural Programme

	9 Economic Development & Skills Capital Strategy
	10 Climate Statement
	Appendix Composite of Committee Climate Statements - EDS FINAL
	CIA - Committee Climate Statements - 2023-11-27
	EIA 2455 - Committee Climate Statements - 2023-11-23

	11 Lifelong Learning and Skills quality update report
	Performance Report_22_01_2024_V1.1
	EIA - Word Form 1 FACES ACL framework 23_24 (004)


